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Independent Auditor’s Report

Domingo P. Martinez, CGFM
New Mexico State Auditor
Board of County Commissioners
County of Luna

Deming, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of County of Luna, New Mexico, as of and for the
year-ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. We have also audited the financial statements of each of the County’s non-major governmental funds
and budget comparison presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual fund
financial statements as of and for the year-ended June 30, 2006 as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of County of Luna, New Mexico’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial staternents based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and with standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles of the United States of America used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of County of Luna, New Mexico, as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general
fund, road fund, and county maintenance fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of each non-major governmental fund
and the Detention Center Fund of County of Luna, New Mexico, as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the non-
major governmental funds for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the requred supplementary information. However, we did not audit the

information and express no opinion on it.

0/
A Firm of Certified Public Accountants
6090 SURETY, SUITE 100 * EL PASO, TX 79905 « (915) 775-1040
FACSIMILE: (915} 775-1849 * marcfair@marcfair.com
]



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 20, 2006 on our
consideration of County of Luna, New Mexico’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements, and the combining
and individual fund financial statements and budgetary comparisons of the County of Luna, New Mexico. The
accompanying information listed as Supporting Schedules 1 through 7 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis. Also, the
accompanying Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities for the Agency Funds, as required by SAO Rule
2.2.2.10.BB, is presented for purposes of additional analysis. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

W IM( ﬂm%&,z&b

El Paso, Texas
October 20, 2006
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of County of Luna, we offer readers of County of Luna financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of County of Luna for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2006. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements of County of Luna
and additional information provided.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of County of Luna exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$36,419,795 (net assets). Of this amount, $18,536,844 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e Revenues for governmental activities increased $3,990,677 over the prior year.
o  Expenditures for governmental activities increased $4,686,131 over the prior year.

e As of June 30, 2006, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$15,025,657.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance of the general fund was
$1,812,083.

e  During the year, $2,740,000 was paid on the principal of the gross receipts tax revenue bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to County of Luna’s basic financial statements.
County of Luna’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of County of Luna finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of County of Luna’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of County of Luna is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of County of Luna that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of County of Luna include general government, public safety, public works, and health and
welfare. The business-type activity of the County includes a detention facility.
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The government-wide financial statements can be found at exhibits A-1 and A-2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. County of Luna, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
All of the funds of County of Luna can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in determining what financial resources are available in the near future to finance the
County’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

County of Luna maintains twenty-four individual governmental funds organized according to their type (special
revenue and capital projects). Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Road Fund, and County
Maintenance Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 21 governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

County of Luna adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and all other funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund, Road Fund and County Maintenance Fund to
demonstrate compliance with this budget. In addition, the individual financial statements of the non-major
governmental fund types include budgetary comparison data.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found at exhibits B-1 through C-3 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The County uses proprietary funds to account for the detention facility
operations of the County. The proprietary fund is considered to be a major fund of the County. The basic
proprietary fund statement can be found at Exhibit D-1 through D-3

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support County of Luna’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

County of Luna fiduciary funds account for the collection of property taxes and special fees at the detention facility
and their remittance to other governmental agencies.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found at Exhibit E-1 of this report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 26-43 of this report.

Combining Statements. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental
funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund
statements and schedules can be found on pages 46-53 of this report.

Analysis of Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of County of Luna, net assets exceeded liabilities by $36,419,795 at the close of the current fiscal year. (See
analysis on page 7)

A large portion of County of Luna’s net assets represents the County’s investment of $17,882,951 in capital assets
(e.g., land improvements, buildings, infrastructure and machinery and equipment), less any related outstanding debt
used to acquire those assets. County of Luna uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although County of Luna’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $18,536,844 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, County of Luna is able to report positive balances in all categories of net assets,
for the government as a whole as well as for the business-type activities.

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets

The County’s net assets, overall, increased by $3,280,182 during the current fiscal year. These increases are
explained in the government activities discussion below, and are primarily a result of increased tax revenues during
the fiscal year. (See analysis on page 8)

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased County of Luna’s net assets by $2,261,249 compared
to the prior year’s increase of $988,810. Property taxes and gross receipts taxes contributed $7,826,962 for covering
the $5,565,788 net program expense associated with general governmental activities.

General Fund-Revenue Trend

15,000,000

10,000,000 -

5,000,000 +

2003-04 2004-05 2005-06
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Analysis of Changes in Net Assets (continued)

Governmental revenues, consisting mostly of taxes, are not directly associated with any government function. The
above chart provides a comparison of prior two years. The total revenues increased $3,443,625. Gross receipts tax
revenue and state shared taxes grew 35.84% as compared to the prior year.

Investment earnings were increased 3.7% in fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The primary cause for this increase
was the increase in the investment balances during the year.

Charges for services increased 27.73% due to increased collections for licenses and service charges.
Intergovernmental income increased 40.97% due to increased state and federal assistance.

Other revenues for the current year increased 61.93% due to increased collections of miscellaneous fees such as
motor vehicle and rents.

Total revenues from governmental activities are summarized below. For fiscal year 2005-2006, Local and State
taxes made up 76% of the total general fund revenues compared to 58% of the prior years revenues.

Revenue by Source-General Government

. Charges for
Licenses .
0% | Services
° lother 3%
Fines | 20%

0% |

Small Cities Asst.
%

Local Taxes
9%

State Taxes
67%

Business-Type Activities. Business-type activities increased the County’s net assets by $1,019,008 compared to the
prior year’s increase of $1,209,987. The key element of this increase was an increase in fees collected at the
detention center during the current year. However, the revenue only increased 6% over the prior year while the
expenses increased 11%. The increase in fees only offset the increase in expenses. There was a decrease in the
ending cash balance due to the defeasance of the revenue bond.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, County of Luna uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of County of Luna’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing County of Luna’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds reported by the County
include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Project Funds.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, County of Luna’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $15,025,657, a decrease of $230,809 before transfers in comparison with the prior year. The decrease is
primarily due to the increase in capital outlay expenditures. Approximately 97 percent of this total amount,
$14,537,851, constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion.
The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already
been committed for Road Fund inventory in the amount of $487,806.

Revenues for governmental functions overall totaled $15,209,550 in the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2006, which
represents an increase of $3,990,677 from the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2005. Expenditures for governmental
functions totaled $15,440,359. This was an increase of $4,686,131 from the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2005. In the
fiscal year-ended June 30, 2006, expenditures for governmental functions exceeded revenues by $230,809.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of County of Luna. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance of the General Fund was $1,812,083.

The fund balance of County of Luna’s General Fund increased $290,451 during the current fiscal year, due to
revenue in excess of expenses and operating transfers. The increase does include the transfer of $739,975 to various
funds, which occurred during 2006.

The Road Fund has total fund equity of $1,352,655. The net decrease in fund balance during the current year in the
Road Fund was $219,002. This decrease is due primarily to increased expenses for road repairs by the fund.

The County Maintenance Fund has a total fund balance of $11,272,614. The net increase in fund balance during the
current year in the County Maintenance Fund was $449,886. This increase is due primarily to increased tax
revenue.

Proprietary Funds. The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

At the end of the fiscal year, the unrestricted net assets for the detention center were $2,798,686. The total increase
in net assets for the Proprietary Funds was $1,018,933. Factors concerning the finances of this fund have been
addressed previously in the discussion of the County’s business-type activities.

Fiduciary Funds. The County maintains fiduciary funds for the assets of various agency funds. Changes to the
fiduciary funds were immaterial for the fiscal year.

Budgetary Highlights

The State of New Mexico budget process is defined under State law and regulation. To enhance the process of
developing a budget at the county level, County of Luna utilizes goals and objectives defined by the County
Commissioners, community input meetings, long-term plans and input from various staff groups to develop the
County budget. County priorities are well defined through this process.



Budgetary Highlights (continued)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. The General Fund accounts for all of the general services provided by the

County of Luna.

The County has found it necessary to modify the budget at various times throughout the fiscal year. This is done

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
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with resolutions to the budget. The following chart shows the adjustments for the year:

Original Final

Type Budget Budget Modification
Revenue-Other $ 63,700 54,700 (9,000)
revenue
Expense-General 2,818,003 2,928,141 110,138
government
Expense-Public 2,115,669 2,151,779 36,110
safety
Expense-Public 382,503 394,503 12,000
works
Totals $ 5379875 $ 5,529,123 § 149,248

At the end of 2006, the cash and investments balance of the General Fund increased by $456,852. The following
chart demonstrates a summary of the major revenue sources received compared to the approved budget for the

General Fund.

Reason

Reduction in rental income

Increase in salaries, increased printing
and postage costs, increase in allotments

for recreation

Increase in Humane Society allotment,
increased fuel costs, and purchase of
wireless equipment

Increase in HVAC repairs

Budget and Actual Revenue by Source - General Fund

4,000,000

3,500,000
3,000,000 -
2,500,000 -
2,000,000 +
1,500,000 -
1,000,000 -

500,000 -

Local Taxes State Taxes Charges for Small Other
Services Counties
Asst.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
June 30,2006

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Budgetary Highlights (continued)

General government expenditures include all administrative functions of the County which include: County
Commissioners, Administration, Finance, Maintenance, Public Safety, Road Repairs, and Health. The following
chart shows a summary of functional categories for expenditures:

Budget and Actual Expenses by Source - General Fund

| 3,500,000 - z =
3,000,000 -
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000

Budget
@ Actual
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The County of Luna’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2006 amount to $17,914,148 (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets include land improvements,
buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure. The total increase in the County’s capital assets (excluding
accumulated depreciation) for the current fiscal year was $3,493,572 for governmental activities. The total increase
in business-type capital assets (excluding accumulated depreciation) for the current fiscal year was $682,427.

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

June 30,2006
Government Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
Land and Construction in Process $ 4,140,492 $ 244714  § 4,385,206
Buildings 6,227,159 5,147,915 11,375,074
Furniture and Equipment 1,689,835 464,033 2,153,868
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation  $ 12,057,486 $ 5,856,662 $ 17,914,148

For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from
acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year. Fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
expenditures. See Note 6 in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements for further information regarding
capital assets.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
June 30,2006

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Capital Asset and Debt Administration (continued)

The Statement of Net Assets shows the Investment in Capital Assets-Governmental Funds in the amount of
$12,026,289. This investment includes the land, buildings, land and building improvements, equipment,
construction in progress, and all applicable debt service. The total increase in capital assets was $3,493,572, which
included construction projects totaling $3,280,518, of which $2,861,934 was in progress at the end of the year.
Equipment costing $213,054 was purchased for the County. The deletions consisted of the disposal of obsolete
equipment costing $183,164.

The additions in business-type activities total $682,427 in equipment and improvements to the detention center.

The County’s loans decreased $7,798 through principal payments. Additional information on the County’s debt can
be found in Note 7.

The following is a schedule showing the Net Value of the Capital Assets and the application of the principal
balances of the notes as of the fiscal year end:

Balance
Government Business-Type as of
Activities: Activities: June 30, 2006

Net Value of Capital Assets $ 12,057,486 § 5,856,662 § 17,914,148
Long-Term Debt Principal Balance:

Fire Truck Loan 31,197 - 31,197
Total Investment in Capital Assets

Net of Related Debt $ 12,026,289 § 5,856,662 § 17,882,951

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
The above factors were considered in preparing County of Luna’s budget for the 2006 fiscal year.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of County of Luna’s finances for all of those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the County’s Financial Services Director, 321
West Spruce, Deming, New Mexico 88030.
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Exhibit A-1

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2006
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,257,732 % 2,607,266 $ 6,864,998
Investments 10,903,992 - 10,903,992
Taxes receivable 163,132 - 163,132
Property taxes receivable 394,790 - 394,790
Other receivables 4,384 - 4,384
Due from other governments 533,792 495,250 1,029,042
Inventory 487,806 487,806
Capital assets:
Land and construction in process 4,140,492 244,714 4,385,206
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 7,916,994 5,611,948 13,528,942
Total assets $ 28,803,114 $ 8,959,178 $ 37,762,292
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 743,447 $ 119,033 $ 862,480
Accrued salaries 118,992 91,370 210,362
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 7,798 7,798
Due in more than one year 168,430 93,427 261,857
Total liabilities 1,038,667 303,830 1,342,497
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 12,026,289 5,856,662 17,882,951
Unrestricted 15,738,158 2,798,686 18,536,844
Total net assets $ 27,764,447 $ 8,655,348 $ 36,419,795

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 13
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



Exhibit B-1
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Balance Sheet
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Total
General Road County Non-Major Total
Assets Fund Fund Maintenance Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ 322,605 $ 757,853 $ 1,048,218 § 2,129,056 $ 4,257,732
Investments 2,114,859 - 8,789,133 - 10,903,992
Taxes receivable 1,532 161,600 - - 163,132
Property taxes receivable 394,790 394,790
Other receivables 415 - - 3,969 4,384
Due from other governments 874 - 497,318 35,600 533,792
Inventory - 487,806 - - 487,806
Due from other funds - - 1,525,248 89,326 1,614,574
Total Assets $ 2,835075 $ 1,407,259 § 11,859,917 § 2,257951 § 18,360,202
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 85,873 §% 34440 §$ 587,303 § 35831 % 743,447
Accrued salaries 79,587 20,164 - 19,241 118,992
Deferred revenue 857,532 - - - 857,532
Due to other funds - - - 1,614,574 1,614,574
Total liabilities 1,022,992 54,604 587,303 1,669,646 3,334,545
Fund balances:
Reserved 487,806 487,806
Unreserved for capital projects
funds (1,525,248) (1,525,248)
Unreserved for special revenue
funds 864,849 11,272,614 2,113,553 14,251,016
Unreserved 1,812,083 - - - 1,812,083
Total fund balances 1,812,083 1,352,655 11,272,614 588,305 15,025,657

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2835075 $ 1407259 § 11,859917 $ 2,257,951 $§ 18,360,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 15



Exhibit B-2
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2006

Total fund balances — governmental funds $ 15,025,657

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Cost of the assets $ 18,542,569
Accumulated depreciation (6,485,083)
$ 12,057,486 12,057,486

Certain assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 857,532

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

NMFA loan payable $ 31,197

Compensated absences 145,031
$ 176,228 (176,228)
Total net assets — governmental activities $ 27,764,447

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 16



Revenues:
Taxes
State shared taxes
Small counties assistance
State allocation
Charges for services
Interest income
Federal grants
State grants
Other income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health & welfare
Debt service
Principal
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
(uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance:
Balances - beginning of year

Balances - end of year

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Exhibit B-3

County Total Total
General Road Maintenance Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
1,467,728 - 8 - 3 - 3 1,467,728
3,407,793 1,585,995 818,799 1,513,243 7,325,830
140,000 - - - 140,000
239,007 233,256 - 328,241 800,504
124,146 10,917 - 169,600 304,663
335,702 13,768 621,154 12,532 983,156
- - - 309,548 309,548
247,242 95,722 - 2,677,099 3,020,063
353,362 13,222 323,585 167,889 858,058
6,314,980 1,952,880 1,763,538 5,178,152 15,209,550
2,825,515 - - 353,613 3,179,128
2,077,470 - - 1,282,058 3,359,528
381,569 2,262,897 984,159 13,361 3,641,986
1,758,347 1,758,347
- - - 7,798 7,798
82,796 806,943 2,603,833 3,493,572
5,284,554 2,345,693 1,791,102 6,019,010 15,440,359
1,030,426 (392,813) (27,564) (840,858) (230,809)
138,331 173,811 1,727,450 238,330 2,277,922
(878,306) - (1,250,000) (149,541) (2,277,847)
(739,975) 173,811 477,450 88,789 75
290,451 (219,002) 449,886 (752,069) (230,734)
1,521,632 1,571,657 10,822,728 1,340,374 15,256,391
1,812,083 1,352,655 § 11,272,614 $ 588,305 % 15,025,657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit B-4

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year-Ending June 30, 2006

Total net change in fund balances-governmental funds $ (230,734)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense.

Capital outlays $ 3,493,5721
Asset disposal (15,077)
Depreciation expense (544,922)
$ 2,933,573 2,933,573

Certain revenues are deferred in the funds based on available and measurable criteria,
whereas they are recorded as revenue in Statement of Activities (571,806)

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts earmed
during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are
measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid).

This year, vacation leave used ($276,639) exceeded the amounts earned ($154,221). 122,418

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment

reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 7,798
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2,261,249

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Exhibit C-1

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3411424 § 3411424 $ 3,287,554 (123,870)
Payment in licu of taxes 1,054,760 1,054,760 1,416,845 362,085
Penalty and interest 108,000 108,000 154,142 46,142
Licenses and permits 2,200 2,200 7,275 5,075
Intergovernmental revenue 209,779 209,779 316,050 106,271
Fees and service charges 172,800 172,800 225,076 52,276
Investment income 225,000 225,000 335,702 110,702
Other revenue 63,700 54,700 65,143 10,443
Total revenues 5,247,663 5,238,663 5,807,787 569,124
Beginning cash 1,027,233 1,027,233
6,274,896 6,265,896
Expenditures:
Current
General government 2,818,003 2,928,141 2,787,844 140,297
Public safety 2,115,669 2,151,779 2,018,946 132,833
Public works 382,503 394,503 371,162 23,341
Capital outlay - - 6,867 (6,867)
Total expenditures 5,316,175 5,474,423 5,184,819 289,604
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 622,968
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (739,975) (739,975) (739,975) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (739,975) (739,975) (739,975) -
Net change in fund balances (117,607)
Difference between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued receivables 507,193
Adjust accrued liabilities (99,735)
407,458
Fund balances — beginning of year 1,521,632
Fund balances — end of year $ 1,812,083

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 19



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Road Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GA AP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
State shared taxes
Investment income
Miscellaneous income

Total revenues

Beginning cash

Expenditures:

Public works
Personnel expenses
Operating expenses

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Difference between GAAP and Non-GAAP

Adjust accrued receivables
Adjust accrued liabilities

Fund balance — beginning of year

Fund balance — end of year

Exhibit C-2

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
225,000 $ 225,000 $ 210,470 (14,530)
10,000 10,000 10,917 917
798,057 798,057 587,787 (210,270)
800,000 800,000 1,077,266 277,266
- - 14,375 14,375
3,000 3,000 12,615 9,615
1,836,057 1,836,057 1.913,430 77,373
1,040,913 1,040,913
2,876,970 2,876,970
1,058,279 1,078,279 1,112,208 (33,929)
923,904 1,476,434 1,175,476 300,958
- 82,596 82,796 (200)
1,982,183 2,637,309 2,370,480 266,829
(457,050)
173,811 173,811 173,811 -
173,811 173,811 173,811 -
(283,239)
39,450
24,787
64,237
1,571,657

S__ 1352655

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

County Maintenance Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 3,247,000 $ 3,247,000 $ 568,044 $ (2,678,956)
Investment income 325,000 325,000 621,154 296,154
Total revenues 3,572,000 3,572,000 1,189,198 (2,382,802)
Beginning cash 829,332 829,332
4,401,332 4,401,332
Expenditures:
General government
Operating expenses 2,331,570 2,382,967 26,430 2,356,537
Capital outlay 1,226,302 1,226,302 1,255,248 (28,946)
Total expenditures 3,557,872 3,609,269 1,281,678 2,327,591
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures (92,480)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,727,450 1,727,450 1,727,450 -
Transfers out (1,250,000) (1,250,000) (1,250,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 477,450 477,450 477,450 -
Net change in fund balance 384,970
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue 574,340
Adjust accrued expenses _(509,424)
64,916
Fund balances - beginning of year 10,822,728
Fund balances — end of year $ 11,272,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit D-1

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Proprietary Funds — Detention Center
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006
Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 2,607,266
Due from other governments 495,250
Total current assets 3,102,516

Non-current assets

Capital assets 7,437,197
Accumulated depreciation (1,580,535)
Total non-current assets 5,856,662
Total assets $ 8,959,178
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 119,033
Accrued salaries 91,370
Accrued compensated absences 93,427
Total liabilities 303,830
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 5,856,662
Unrestricted 2,798,686
Total net assets 8,655,348
Total liabilities and net assets $ 8,959,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit D-2
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds — Detention Center
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Operating revenues:

Correction fees $ 101,843
Adult prisoner fees 5,866,344
Juvenile prisoner fees 125,593
Dispatch-city 234,034
State shared taxes 692,531
Miscellaneous revenue 5,798

Total operating revenues 7,026,143

Operating expenses:

Personnel expenses 4,117,502
Depreciation 264,881
Other operating costs 1,532,889
Total operating expenses 5,915,272
Operating income (loss) 1,110,871

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Interest revenue 77.502
Interest expense (169,365)
Total Non-operating revenues (expenses) (91,863)
Income (loss) before transfers 1,019,008
Transfers out {75)
Change in net assets: 1,018,933
Total net assets, beginning of year 7,636,415
Total net assets, end of year $ 8,655,348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund — Detention Center
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from correction fees and taxes $
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Defeasance of bond loan
Intergovernmental transters
Interest income
Interest expense

Net cash used for non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash used for capital financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents — end of year $

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) $
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation

Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Receivables
Inventories
Inter-fund account
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $

7,017,043
(4,130,855)

_ (1,479,133)

1,407,055

(2,740,000)
(75)
77,502

(193,089)

(2,855.,662)

(682.427)

(682,427)

(2,131,034)

4,738,300

2,607,266

1,110,871

264,881

(9,100)

(13,353)

53,756

1,407,055

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



Assets
Cash
Property taxes receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to inmates
Due to other governments
Prepaid taxes
Overpayment of taxes
Taxes paid in advance
Due to taxpayers

Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30,2006

Page 25

Exhibit E-1

Agency
Funds

133,169

871194

1,004,363

3,065
933,484
4,480
14,508
18,426

30,400

1,004,363
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The County of Luna (the “County”), New Mexico was founded in 1901 and operates under the Commission-
Manager system. There are three elected commissioners serving four-year terms. In addition, the following County
Officials are elected for four-year terms: assessor, clerk, sheriff, treasurer, and probate judge. The County provides
traditional services such as public safety, culture and recreation, public works, roads, tax collection, and licensing
and regulation of businesses.

The financial statements of County of Luna (the “County”) have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant
of the County’s accounting policies are described below.

Financial Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the County, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include any potential component units in the financial reporting entity was made
by applying the criteria set forth in GASB-14. The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential
component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The
most significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to
exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation
of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters.

A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this
criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the government and/or its citizens. A third criterion used
to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special
financing relationships, regardless of whether the government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based
upon the application of these criteria, the County has no component units, and is not a component unit of another
governmental agency.

Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the primary government. These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. For the most
part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. These statements distinguish between
the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different
business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenues. Indirect expenses have not been allocated by function but have been
included in the general government function.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate
statements for each fund category (governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary) are presented. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially
equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Road Fund. This is used to account for the revenue received and expenses incurred in maintaining the County
roads. Authority for the creation of this fund is by County resolution.

County Maintenance. This is used to account for the major repairs and maintenance of County buildings. Authority
for the creation of this fund is by County resolution.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Detention Center Fund. This fund accounts for the activities of the County’s corrections facility, which houses
inmates for various governments as well as the County of Luna.

The County reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds. These funds are used to account for monies held by the County in a custodial capacity. They do not
report operations or have a measurement focus.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Government-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the ecomomic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. The County considers all revenues reported in the governmental
funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes, sales taxes,
franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when a
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred,
there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County’s policy to first
apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by
general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and proprietary funds of the County follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Govemments also have
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and proprietary funds,
subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

The County implemented the provisions of GASB No.’s 34, 37 and 38 effective July 1, 2003. The County
implemented the provisions of GASB No. 40 effective July 1, 2004.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes, because elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in the Statement of Activities.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as generu! revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

The County reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a function. The County does not currently employ indirect cost allocation systems.
Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenue of the County’s proprietary fund is charges for correction fees. Operating expenses for
proprietary funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. When both
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for us, it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first,
and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Implementation of New Accounting Principles of the United States of America

The County adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This statement affects the manner in which the County
records transactions and presents financial information. State and local governments have traditionally used a
financial reporting model substantially different from the one used to prepare private-sector financial reports.
GASB Statement No 34 established new requirements and a new reporting model for the annual financial reports of
state and local governments. The statement was developed to make annual reports of state and local governments
easier to understand and more useful to the people who use governmental financial information to make decisions.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Implementation of New Accounting Principles of the United States of America (continued)

The statement includes the following sections, which were not previously included in the basic financial statements.
The governmental fund financial statements continue to be presented as a building block for the new GASB
Statement No. 34 statements.

a. Management’s Discussion and Analysis — GASB Statement No. 34 requires that financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the County’s financial activities in the form
of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A). This analysis is similar to the analysis provided in the
annual reports of private-sector organizations.

b. Government-Wide Financial Statements — The reporting model includes financial statements prepared using full
accrual accounting for all of the County’s activities. This approach includes not just current assets and
liabilities but also capital and other long-term assets as well as long-term liabilities. Accrual accounting also
reports all of the revenues and costs of providing services each year, not just those received or paid in the
current year or soon thereafter.

c. Statement of Net Assets — The statement of net assets is designed to display the financial position of the primary
government (government and business-type activities). The County now reports all capital assets in the
government-wide statement of net assets and reports depreciation expense — the cost of “using up” capital assets

in the statement of activities. The net assets of the County are broken down into three categories - 1) invested
in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

d. Statement of Activities — The government-wide statement of activities reports expenses and revenues in a format
that focuses on the cost of each of the County’s functions. The expense of individual functions is compared to
the revenue generated directly by the function. Accordingly, the County has recorded capital and certain other
long-term assets and liabilities in the statement of net assets, and has reported all revenues and the cost of
providing services under the accrual basis of accounting in the statements of activities.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment activities. A
“Pooled Cash” concept is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under
this method, all cash is pooled for investment purposes and each fund has equity in the pooled amount. All amounts
included in pooled cash and investments are considered to be cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of
cash flows.

Deposits and Investments: The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in Certificates of Deposit, obligations of the U.S. Government, and fully
collateralized repurchase agreements.

Investments for the County are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangement s outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds or internal balances” (i.e., the current portion of inter-
fund loans) or “advances to/from other funds or internal balances” (i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans).

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Receivables and Payables (continued)

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account
in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resources.

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is
expected to be uncollectible. In the government-wide and governmental fund financial statements, delinquent
property taxes are recorded when levied.

Property taxes attach as an unsubordinated enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the assessment year.
Current year taxes are levied on November 1, unless a formal extension of time is obtained from the Property Tax
Division of the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration. Taxes are due in total on November 10, or
optionally in two equal installments on November 10 and April 10 of the next tax year. Although due on November
10 and April 10, the taxes are not delinquent until December 10 and May 10, respectively. In the event the original
levy date is formally extended, the respective due dates and delinquency dates are correspondingly extended.

Property taxes are levied on November 1 based on the assessed value of property as listed on the previous January 1
and are due in two payments by November 10™ and April 10", Property taxes uncollected after November 10™ and
April 10th are considered delinquent and the County may assess penalties and interest. The taxes attach as an
enforceable lien on property thirty (30) days thereafter, at which time they become delinquent.

Deposits and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three
months of the date acquired by the County.

State Statute Section 6-10-10, NMSA 1978 authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
corporate bonds.

The County utilizes one main demand deposit account for most of the transactions of the County - i.e., pooled cash.
Therefore, negative balances in certain funds have been reclassified as due to other funds at year end.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund type
inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in both the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.

Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of proprietary fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources for their repayment, are required to

be classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Due
to the bond being defeased in the current year there are no restricted assets at this time (sec Note 7).
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental column in
the government-side financial statements. Capital assets including computer software are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the historical cost of infrastructure
assets, (retroactive to 1979) are to be included as part of the governmental capital assets reported in the government-
wide statements. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized. No computer software is developed in-house.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. No interest was
included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Permanent Buildings 40
Land Improvements 20
Vehicles S
Computer Equipment and Software 5
Other Furniture and Equipment 5-10

Deferred Revenue

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that grant revenue be recognized
at the time the related expense is made if the expenditure of funds is the prime factor for determining eligibility for
reimbursement; therefore, amounts received and not expended in the Special Funds are shown as deferred revenues.
In addition, property taxes receivable but uncollected within sixty (60) days of year-end are classified as deferred
revenue.

Compensated Absences

Accrued annual leave and compensatory time are the components of accrued compensated absences. The County
accumulates days of vacation per employee, per year, and per years of service. Currently, employees with one or
more but less than ten years of service accumulate ten days of vacation per year. Employees with more than ten
years of service accumulate fifteen days of vacation per year.

An employee may accumulate no more than 240 hours of accrued annual leave. Accumulated vacation pay for the
County totaled $145,031 as of June 30, 2006. Of the total, $93,427 is related to the Business-Type Activities —
Detention Center.

Certain County staff members are entitled to accumulate compensatory time for hours worked in excess of the
normal workday. Any accumulated compensatory time not utilized upon termination is paid at the employee’s
current wage rate. Accumulated compensatory pay for the County amounted to $ 40,465 as of June 30, 2006. Of
the total $ 9,840 is allocable to the Business-Type Activities — Detention Center.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (continued)

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Inter-Fund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute
reimbursements to a fund from expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another
fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in

the fund that is reimbursed.

All other inter-fund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as operating
transfers.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
1. Two months prior to June 30™, the County Manager submits to the County Commission a proposed
operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year commencing the following July 1%. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted at the County Office to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. After the County Commission approves the proposed budget, it is then submitted to the Local Government
Division of the State Department of Finance and Administration for review and certification.

4. Upon certification the budget becomes a legally binding document. Total expenditures in any fund may not
exceed the amount budgeted.

5. The County Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts among departments within a fund;
however, the County Commission and the Local Government Division of the State Department of Finance
and Administration must approve these revisions.

6. Any revisions that increase the total budgeted expenditures of any fund must have written approval of the
Secretary of Finance and Administration and the Attorney General. If such approval is not granted, the

County is legally restricted under state statutes to the total expenditures provided for in the budget.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

7. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds.

Budgets are not adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Throughout
the year, the accounting records are maintained on a non-GAAP basis of cash receipts and disbursements;
consequently, certain revenues and the related assets are recognized when received rather than when earned and
certain expenses are recognized when paid rather than when the obligation is incurred. Accordingly, the budgets are
adopted on the cash basis of accounting. Budgetary comparisons presented for in this report are on this non-GAAP
budgetary basis. Appropriations lapse at year-end, therefore, beginning cash balances reflected as fund balances or
retained earnings in the budgetary comparisons are considered available resources for the subsequent year’s budget.
The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorization amounts as revised during the year.

No budget was adopted for the Rural Addressing, Duke Energy, Recreation, and Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
special revenue funds; also the Port of Entry and Distance Learning Center and the CDBG Grants Senior Center
capital projects funds as no revenues or expenditures were anticipated.

The accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) and Actual present comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary
basis.

Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from
those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, a
reconciliation of resultant basis, perspective, equity and timing differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources of financial resources for the year-ended June 30, 2006 is presented.

The following is reconciliation between the Non-GAAP budgetary basis amounts and the financial statements on the
GAAP basis by fund type:

County
General Road Maintenance Non-Major Proprictary
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources (uses) over expenditures
(GAAP Basis) $ 753,193 § (219,002) § 449,886 S (1,030,984) § 1,018,933
Adjustments:
To revenues for tax accruals, earnings
on investments and other deferrals and
accruals. (969,935) (39,450) (574,340) 589,956 (14,824)
Adjustments:
To adjust expenditures for payables,
payroll taxes, prepaid expenses and
other accruals. 99,735 (24,787) 509,424 84,770 (3,140,867)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources
(uses) over expenditures (Budget Basis) $ (117,007) $ (283,239) § 384970 S (356,258) $ (2,136,758)
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NOTE 3 CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK - DEPOSITS

The County had the following depository accounts. All deposits are carried at cost plus accrued
interest. The County does not have a deposit policy.

Bank
Depository Account Balance
Insured S 200,000
Collateralized:
Collateral held by pledging bank’s trust department not in the county’s name 2,382,583
Uninsured and uncollateralized -
Total Cash and Investments, Primary Government S 2,582,583

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The County does not have a deposit policy for custodial risk. As of June 30, 2006,
$2,382,583 of the County’s bank balance of $2,582,583 was exposed to custodial credit risk as

follows:
Uninsured and uncollateralized S -
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust department not in 2,382,583
County’s name
Total Cash and Investments, Primary Government S 2,382,583

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

New Mexico State Statutes authorize the creation of the local short —term investment fund in the New Mexico State
Treasury. The statutes authorize the state treasurer to pool monies received from local public bodies for investment
purposes with other public monies under his control.

The County maintains funds with the State Treasurer External Investment Pool Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP) as noted above.

The investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;

The State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool is not SEC registered. Section 6-10-10 I, NMSA
1978, empowers the State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the State Board of Finance, to invest
money held in the short term investment fund in securities that are issued by the United States government
or by its departments or agencies and are either direct obligations of the United States or are backed by the
full faith and credit of the United States government or are agencies sponsored by the United States
government. The Local Government Investment Pool investments are monitored by the same investment
committee and the same policies and procedures that apply to all other state investments;

e  The pool does not have unit shares. Per Section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at the end of each month all
interest eamed is distributed by the State Treasurer to the contributing entities in amounts directly
proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the fund amounts were
invested; and

¢  Participation in the local government investment pool is voluntary.
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS (continued)

County of Luna maintains an investment policy which states that “funds will be invested in compliance with the
provisions of the State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division”.
The County has established an investment committee which meets at least bimonthly to review and evaluate
investment activity. The committee includes the County Treasurer, the County Treasurer’s Investment Officer, the
County Manager and one other county employee. This committee reports to the County Board of Finance which
includes the County Treasurer, the County Manager, three County Commissioners and the County Clerk.

The County records unrealized gains and losses on its investments as required by generally accepted accounting
principles. The unrealized loss totals ($553,772) at June 30, 2006.

Credit Risk

The County’s investment policy does not further limit its investment choices other than those noted above per New
Mexico State Statutes.

Interest Rate Risk

The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The County places no limit on the amount the County may invest in any one issuer. The County has more that 5%
of its portfolio with the following issuers:

LGIP 27.77%
Mid Small Cap 6.37%

GNMA 24.44%
CD’s 39.77%

The County portfolio concentrations are noted below.

Annual Market Unrealized Percent
Description Type  Yield Cost Value Gain (Loss) Of Portfolio
Non US Developed N/A VAR 94,679 94,679 -
Emerging Markets N/A VAR 56,686 56,686 -
151,365 151,365 - 96%
Core Bonds N/A VAR 109,141 109,141 - .69%
Mid Small Cap N/A VAR 1,008,772 1,008,772 - 6.37%
LGIP - 7106 N/A VAR 3 2,200,842 $ 2,200,842 § -
LGIP - MM Hosp Trust N/A VAR 2,195,001 2,195,001 -
Sub-total 4,395,843 4,395,843 - 27.77%

Page 35



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006
NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS (continued)
Annual Market Unrealized Percent
Description Type Yield Cost Value Gain (Loss)  Of Portfolio
#403386-GNMA Sec 4.85 145,627 132,110 (13,517)
#615948-GNMA Sec 5.07 268,741 252,321 {16,420)
#604497-GNMA Sec 5.08 199,978 187,904 (12,074)
#445622-GNMA Sec 4.66 192,257 173,136 (19,121)
GNMA-3227 Sec 5.90 38,052 36,411 (1,641)
GNMA-3582 Sec 5.00 236,467 222,795 (13,672)
#781603-GNMA Sec 5.01 234,607 221,103 (13,504)
GNMA-603746 Sec 4.63 169,461 156,631 (12,830)
#607693 GNMA Sec 5.02 120,873 108,796 {12,077)
#607708 GNMA Sec 4.87 41,810 33,409 (8,401)
GNMA-2575 Sec 5.60 66,342 67,496 1,154
GNMA 625893 Sec 5.25 249,788 242,151 (7,637)
GNMA 3544 Sec 5.50 195,732 193,117 2,615)
GNMA 11-3498 Sec 4.50 298,209 276,150 (22,059)
GNMA 11-3499 Sec 4.99 207,718 - (207,718)
#583203-GNMA Sec 6.00 149,674 150,345 671
#359907-GNMA Sec 6.10 84,686 82,715 (1,971)
#575477-GNMA Sec 6.10 44,397 44,461 64
#2741-GNMA 11 Sec 6.30 30,747 - (30,747)
#2741-GNMA Sec 6.30 42,013 65,824 23,811
#402577-GNMA Sec 6.20 18,497 17,159 (1,338)
#470426-GNMA Sec 6.50 4,543 4,697 154
#2632-GNMA Sec 6.54 9,548 9,609 61
#2704-GNMA Sec 6.62 7,068 7,125 57
#452961-GNMA Sec 6.40 13,500 19,425 5,925
#492981-GNMA Sec 6.10 60,073 61,475 1,402
#580363-GNMA Sec 5.38 85,289 82,073 (3,216)
#614620-GNMA Sec 5.50 201,317 195,867 (5,450)
#601571-GNMA Sec 5.50 162,963 154,193 (8,770)
#3499-GNMA Sec 4.86 240,510 420,774 180,264
#3513-GNMA Sec 5.00 212,020 199,406 (12,614)
#1142-GNMA Sec 9.50 6,900 6,709 (191)
#492892-GNMA Sec 7.00 2,222 2,140 (82)
#337531-GNMA Sec 6.00 982 947 (35)
#1531-GNMA Sec 7.00 8,832 8,630 (202)
#1593-GNMA Sec 5.50 4,639 4,951 312
#372096-GNMA Sec 6.50 7,786 8,005 219
#530607-GNMA Sec 6.47 10,418 3,648 (6,770)
#449188-GNMA Sec 6.85 13,292 6,419 (6,873)
#3011-GNMA Sec 6.85 18,158 7,739 (10,419)
Sub-total 4,105,736 3,867,866 (237,870) 24.44%
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS (continued)
Annual Market Unrealized Percent
Description Type Yield Cost Value Gain (Loss) Of Portfolio
Savings Account VAR 530,016 530,016 -
Cusip#33761KX59 CD 5.25 100,000 93,015 (6,985)
Cusip#38012aaf7 CD 5.50 100,000 94,188 (5,812)
Cusip#56036UAF0 CD 450 100,000 98,414 (1,586)
Cusip#42723LAJO CD 5.30 99,000 98,208 (792)
Cusip#21685PAD4 CD 4.70 100,000 98,517 (1,483)
Cusip#45662WGAS CD 4.70 100,000 98,565 (1,435)
Cusip#218892DE4 CD 4.65 100,000 98,571 (1,429)
Cusip#041002GG7 CD 4.20 100,000 97,227 (2,773)
Cusip#01073NBK4 CD 425 100,000 97,331 (2,669)
Cusip#041002GGS CD 424 100,000 96,349 (3,651)
Cusip#55266CBUI CD 5.00 100,000 94,688 (5,312)
Cusip#82514PHF1 CD 5.00 100,000 93,402 (6,598)
Cusip#89465ALR7 CD 6.00 100,000 93,978 (6,022)
#07278P997 CD 4.15 100,000 97,221 (2,779)
#59740P9A5 CD 5.38 100,000 95,931 (4,069)
#846603MGV2 CD 4.87 100,000 94,256 (5,744)
Cusip#5530369A4 CD 5.05 100,000 94,370 (5,630)
Cusip#25467B9AS8 CD 6.00 100,000 94,936 (5,064)
Cusip#063248-BH-0 CDh 6.00 100,000 95,018 (4,982)
Cusip#9598979A9 CD 5.00 100,000 93,809 (6,191)
Cusip#554877BH2 CD 4.60 100,000 99,165 (835)
Cusip#39164PAD6 CD 5.00 100,000 97,877 (2,123)
Cusip#70335XBK 1 CD 4.65 100,000 98,543 (1,457)
Cusip#048874AP6 CD 4.70 100,000 98,620 (1,380)
Cusip#919343BX0 CD 4.40 100,000 98,218 (1,782)
Cusip#31984scnl CD 4.30 100,000 96,287 (3,713)
Cusip#42723JAE6 CD 4.15 100,000 98,293 (1,707)
Cusip#52170WDEI! CD 425 100,000 97,093 (2,907)
Cusip#454672AA4 CD 420 100,000 96,985 (3,015)
Cusip#34347RAP6 CDh 420 100,000 97,208 (2,792)
Cusip#20056QEM1 CD 4.35 100,000 96,898 (3,102)
Cusip#846024BB2 CD 4.05 100,000 97,823 2,177)
Cusip#42712AAES CD 4.50 100,000 96,747 (3,253)
Cusip#26924V-GT-0 CD 5.35 100,000 92,960 (7,040)
Cusip#554505PBWS CD 5.25 100,000 91,097 (8,903)
Cusip#143876FC9 CD 5.00 100,000 93,678 (6,322)
Cusip#786580BV-1 CD 5.00 100,000 93,769 (6,231)
Cusip#318926AC6 CD 5.00 100,000 95,713 (4,287)
Cusip#74267G-DY0 CD 4.84 99,750 94,209 (5,541)
Cusip#31604r-AS-4 CD 5.00 100,000 87,655 (12,345)
Cusip#059646CJ6 CDh 5.30 100,000 89,208 (10,792)
Cusip#842871DJ1 CD 5.25 100,000 88,282 (11,718)
Cusip#680061FB9 CD 5.25 100,000 92,503 (7,497)
Cusip#743838K 45 CD 5.00 100,000 93,169 (6,831)
Cusip#856555AK3 CD 4.75 100,000 88,900 (11,100)
Cusip#02341vgw9 CD 499 90,000 85,535 (4,465)
Cusip#340558EP6 CD 5.00 100,000 95,037 (4,963)
Cusip#060703-BC-8 CD 5.60 100,000 95,058 (4,942)
Cusip#025121-AL-8 CD 5.00 100,000 95,033 (4,967)
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006
NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS (continued)
Annual Market Unrealized Percent

Description Type  Yield Cost Value Gain (Loss)  Of Portfolio
Cusip#761198DZ0 CD 5.00 100,000 93,359 (6,641)
Cusip#173702AM3 CD 5.00 100,000 95,741 4,259)
Cusip#6174TMAZ4 CD 5.50 100,000 93,113 {6,887)

89387WDE2 CD 5.00 100,000 90,304 (9,696)

#634518bg8 CDh 5.05 100,000 94,334 (5,666)

#059457EJ6 CD 6.00 98,000 92,756 (5,244)
Cusip#844776AB0 CD 5.25 100,000 91,708 (8,292)
Cusip#94675PAM3 CD 5.00 100,000 90,352 (9,648)
Cusip#29874FW07 CD 5.50 96,000 90,084 (5,916)
Cusip#195554HE3 CD 5.00 100,000 92,252 (7,748)
Cusip#74407Y-9D-3 CD 4.00 100,000 92,070 (7.930)
Cusip#52519HAL1 CD 5.00 100,000 91,218 (8,782)

Sub-total 6,612,766 6,296,864 (315,902) 39.77%
Grand total $ 16,383,623 15,829,851 § (553,772) 100,00%
Less: Cash equivalents 4,925,859

5 10903992
NOTE 5 RECEIVABLES
Receivables as of June 30, 2006, are as follows:
Governmental Proprietary
Fund Fund Total

Taxes receivable $ 163,132 $ $ 163,132
Property taxes receivable 394,790 394,790
Other receivable 4,384 4,384
Due from other governments 533,792 495,250 1,029,042
Net receivables $ 1,096,098 $ 495250 $ 1,591,348

The above receivables are deemed 100% collectible.
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NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year-ended June 30, 2006. Land is
not subject to depreciation.

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2005 Additions Deletions 2006
Capital assets:
Land $ 1,278,558 $ - 3 - $ 1,278,558
Construction in progress - 2,861,934 - 2,861,934
Depreciable capital assets:
Building and improvements 6,860,623 418,584 7,279,207
Furniture and equipment 7,092,980 213,054 (183,164) 7,122,870
Total 15,232,161 3,493,572 (183,164) 18,542,569
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 913,567 138,481 1,052,048
Machinery and equipment 5,194,681 406,441 (168,087) 5,433,035
Total accumulated depreciation 6,108,248 544,922 (168,087) 6,485,083
Net capital assets $ 9,123,913 2,948,650 (15,077) 12,057,486

Depreciation expense for the year-ended June 30, 2006 was charged as follows:

General Governmental $ 226,180
Public Safety 189,367
Public Works 103,994
Health and Welfare 25,381
Total Depreciation Expense $ 544,922
Business-Like Activities:
Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2005 Additions Deletions 2006
Capital assets:
Land and improvements $ 244,714 $ $ $ 244,714
Depreciable capital assets:
Building and improvements 5,759,174 486,300 - 6,245,474
Furniture and equipment 750,882 196,127 - 947,009
Total 6,754,770 682,427 - 7,437,197
Accumulated depreciation
Building and improvements 926,246 171,313 - 1,097,559
Machinery and equipment 389,408 93,568 - 482,976
Total accumulated depreciation 1,315,654 264,881 - 1,580,535
Net capital assets $ 5,439,116 $§ 417546 § - 5,856,662

Depreciation expense relating to business-like activities for the year-ended June 30, 2006 totaled $264,881.
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NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT

Governmental Activities: During the year-ended June 30, 2006, the following changes occurred in the liabilities
reported in the government-wide statement of net assets:

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2005 Additions Retirements June 30, 2006 one year
NMFA Loan
Fire Truck $ 38,995 § $ 7,798 $ 31,197 §$ 7,798
Compensated
absences 267,449 154,221 276,639 145,031 -
$ 306,444 $ 154221 $ 284,437 $ 176,228 $ 7,798

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the fund to which the employees are assigned. The NMFA
loan is deducted from the fire allotment by NMFA.

Loan — New Mexico Finance Authority

In 2001 the County entered into a loan agreement with the New Mexico Finance Authority for the purchase of a fire
truck for the Sunshine volunteer fire department. The county pledged revenues from the Fire Protection Fund
Revenue distributions made annually to Sunshine Fire District by the State Fire Marshall. This revenue is subject to
an intercept agreement. The original amount of the loan is $77,985. Interest on the loan is 0%. The term of the
loan is for ten years.

Fiscal Year Total Debt
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Service

2007 $ 7,798 $ - 3 7,798

2008 7,798 - 7.798

2009 7,798 - 7,798

2010 7,803 - 7,803

$ 31,197 § - $ 31,197

There was no short-term debt activity.

Business-Type Activities: During the year-ended June 30, 2006, the following changes occurred in the liabilities
reported in the government-wide statement of net assets:

The outstanding bonds at June 30, 2006 consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2005 Increase Decrease June 30, 2006 one year
Revenue bonds payable 2,740,000 - 2,740,000 - 3 -
Compensated absences 120,842 88,396 115,811 93,427
2,860,842 88,396 2,855,811 93,427

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the detention center fund.

Revenue bonds payable: Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2005 consisted of Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds
Series 1998. Interest was accrued on May 1 and November 1 at variable rates between 3.75% and 5.20%. The
balance of the revenue bond was paid in full in May 2006. The bond was defeased by the Detention Center fund.
This loan is expected to be paid back, but the terms have not been finalized by the board as of June 30, 2006.
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NOTE 8 RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is subject to risk of loss through areas of general liability, worker’s compensation, and natural disaster
to minimize the risk of loss for general liability, the County has insurance coverage through a private common
carrier. The coverage includes commercial general liability, property, inland marine, crime, errors and omissions
and automobile. The coverage limitation varies for each type of coverage purchased.

For the policy period of July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006, the premiums paid by the County were $460,688. The
assumption of risk transfers upon payment of premiums within the policy limits. To minimize the risk of loss for
worker’s compensation, the County participates in the New Mexico County Insurance Association (a risk pool of
counties within the State of New Mexico).

NOTE 9 PERA PENSION PLAN

Substantially all of County of Luna’s full-time employees participate in a public employee retirement system
authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978.) The Public Employee
Retirement Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and cost-of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to
PERA, P.O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-2123.

General County plan members are required to contribute 9.15% for municipal employees and 16.3% of gross
salaries for law enforcement employees. The County is required to contribute 9.15% and 18.5% of gross salaries for
general County and county Sheriff employees, respectively. The contribution requirements of plan members and the
County are established under Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the
legislature. The county’s contributions to PERA for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2003, and 2004 were $594,468,
$599,617 and $564,040 equal to the amount of the required contributions for the years, respectively.

NOTE 10 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Retiree Health Care Act (10-7C-1 to 10-7C-16, NMSA 1978) provides comprehensive core group health
insurance for persons who have retired from certain public service in New Mexico. The Retiree Health Care
Authority is the administrator of the plan. The purpose is to provide eligible retirees, their spouses, dependents, and
surviving spouses and dependents with health insurance consisting of a plan, or optional plans, of benefits that can
be purchased by funds flowing into the Retiree Health Care Fund and by co-payments or out-of-pocket payments of
eligible retirees.

Monies flow to the Retiree Health Care Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis from eligible employers and eligible retirees.

Eligible employers are institutions of higher education, school districts, or other entities participating in the public
school insurance authority and state agencies, state courts, magistrate courts, municipalities or counties, which are
affiliated under or covered by the Education Retirement Act, Public Employees Retirement Act, or the Magistrate
Retirement Act.

Eligible retirees are: (1) retireces who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to retirement and
whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a participant in the Retiree Health Care
Act on the person’s behalf unless that person retires before the employee’s NMTCHA effective date, in which event
the time period required for employee and employer contributions shall become the period of time between the
employee’s effective date and the date of retirement; or (2) retirees defined by the act who retired prior to July 1,
1990 and former legislators who served at least two years.
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NOTE 10 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Each participating employer makes contributions to the fund in the amount of 1.3% of each participating employee’s
annual salary. Each participating employee contributes to the fund an amount equal to .65% of the employee’s
salary. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium of medical plus basic life plan and an additional $5.00 if
the participant retired prior to the employee’s NMRCHA effective date or is a former legislator.

Contributions from participating employers become the property of the Retiree Health Care Fund and are not
refundable under any circumstances, including termination of employment or termination of the participating
employer’s operation or participation in the Retiree Health Care Act. The employer, employee, and retiree
contributions are required to b e remitted to the Retiree Health Care Authority on a monthly basis.

The Retiree Health Care Authority issues a separate, publicly available audited financial report that includes post
employment benefit expenditures of premiums and claims paid, participant contributions (employer, employee, and
retiree), and net expenditures for the fiscal year. The report also includes the approximate number of retirees
participating in the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority, Albuquerque
State Government Center, 4308 Carlisle Blvd. NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87107.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the County remitted $76,860 in employer contributions to the Retiree
Health Care Authority.

NOTE 11 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County is involved in a Courthouse Renovation and has a construction contract for $2,215,000 in progress as of
June 30, 2006.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is party to various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. The County is insured
through the New Mexico County Insurance authority. In the opinion of management, the outcome of these matters
will not have a material effect on the financial position of the County.

NOTE 12 FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

In the normal course of operations, the County receives grant funds from various federal and state agencies.
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for
reimbursement, which may arise as a result of these audits, is not believed to be material.

NOTE 13 DEFICIT FUND BALANCE AND EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The following funds had a deficit fund balance as of June 30, 2006:

Fund
MVLC Addition $ 177,481
Courthouse Renovation 1,347,767
Juvenile Field Services 90,411

$ 615659
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NOTE 14 INTER-FUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2006, consist of the following:

From To Purpose
3 10,000 General Farm & Range To cover operating expenses
54,409 General Solid Waste To cover operating expenses
16,500 General Sirolli Institute To cover operating expenses
50,000 General MVLC To cover construction expenses
7,000 General Farm & Range To cover operating expenses
92,586 General Healthy Start To cover operating expenses
82,596 General Road To cover operating expenses
399,000 General County Maintenance To cover construction expenses
60,000 General Road To cover operating expenses
20,465 General Road To cover operating expenses
10,750 General Road To cover operating expenses
75,000 General County Maintenance To cover construction expenses
270 Treasurer MH General To reimburse for expenses
1,250,000 MM Hosp Trust County Maintenance Loan from 2006 severance bond
37,867 Duke Energy General To close fund
50 Correction General To reimburse tor expenses
25 Correction Healthy Start To reimburse for expenses
3,450 Law Enforcement County Maintenance To reimburse for expenses
7,811 Fire Protection Volunteer Fire Dept To cover operating expenses
100,000 Fire Protection General To reimburse for expenses
$ 2,277,779 Total

Amounts due as of June 30, 2006, are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Purpose General Fund
Healthy Start Initiative Juvenile Field Services Advance Funds S 89,326
County Maintenance MVLC Addition Advance Funds 177,481
County Maintenance Courthouse Renovation Advance Funds 1,347,767

Total S 1,614,574

Inter-fund balances represent short-term advances for funds that receive taxes and grants on a reimbursement basis.
NOTE 15 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The County purchase gravel for the roads from a family member of one of the County commissioners in the amount

of $7,643, which was not material in amount and will not have a material effect on the financial statements for the
year.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Non- Major Governmental Fund Types
June 30,2006

Ambulance County (1/8% GRT) — To account for the support of the County’s financial share of the ambulance
system. Financing is provided by allotments from the State of New Mexico Fire Marshal’s Office and by EMS
grants. The authority to create this fund was given by New Mexico Statute 7-27-4.11.

DWI Grants — To account for various funds provided to promote awareness and prevention of DWI. This fund
created by County ordinance.

Farm and Range Fund - To account for the operations and maintenance of County roads and predatory animal
control. Financing is provided by the County’s share of grazing fees. Such fees provide for payment of all current
operating costs and may be used only for that purpose. Authority is NMSA 6-11-6.

Fire Protection Fund (1/4% GRT) — To account for the state shared gross receipts for the acquisition and
maintenance of adequate fire protection facilities in the Luna county area. Established in accordance with NMSA 7-

20-E-15.

Healthy Start Initiative - To account for proceeds and expenditures related to a federal grant to eliminate ethnic
disparities in perinatal health by providing consortium and care coordination/case management. This fund has been
established in accordance with federal regulations.

Indigent Claims Fund - To account for the support of indigent hospital patients who are residents of Luna County.
Financing is provided by the imposition of a one-fourth of one-percent sales tax in compliance with the county Sales
Tax Act. The authority to create this fund was given by the New Mexico State Statute 27-5-7.

Juvenile Field Services - To account for Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention funding. This fund
has been established in accordance with federal regulations.

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention — To account for grant funding from the Department of Justice
through New Mexico Children, Youth and Families Department to provide the continuum of Juvenile justice
services. Authority established through federal regulations.

Law Enforcement Protection Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures for maintaining and improving the
County’s law enforcement department in order to enhance its efficiency and effectiveness. Funding is from the
State appropriation authorized by Section 29-13-3F, NMSA.

Reappraisal Program — To account for proceeds from property taxes and the one-percent administrative fees
assessed by county treasurers to revenue recipients. The authority was given by New Mexico State Statute 72-2-
21.1.

Recording Fees — To account for the proceeds collected by the county clerk’s office for recording fees. The
authority to create this fund is by County ordinance.

Recreation — To account for the monies specifically set aside by County ordinance for maintenance and creation of
recreation facilities. There have been no transactions in this fund for several years. The fund was established by
County ordinance.

Rural Addressing — To account for equipment purchases for the 911 Emergency Medical Assistance Program and
Rural Addressing. The authority to create this fund was given by the Enhanced 911 Act. New Mexico State Statute
7-1-6.31.

Treasurer’s Mobile Home Sales - To account fees collected to recover costs incurred in preparing for the sale of
delinquent personal property. The authority to create this fund was given by County ordinance.

Volunteer Fire Departments - To account for funds received from state fire distribution for tanker fire truck debt

service to New Mexico Finance Authority. Authorized by County Resolution 2003-23 and Section 59A-53-7
NMSA 1978.
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Sirolli_Institute — To account for a grant that is an effort to develop community opportunity for economic
development. The fund was established by County ordinance.

Mimbres Valley Learning Center — To account for the revenues and expenditures for maintaining and improving
the learning center.

Duke Energy - To account for the revenues and expenditures of the revenue bond fund.
Solid Waste Grant — To account for grant funds that are to be used to close the landfill formerly operated by the

County. Financing is provided by a grant from the New Mexico Environment Department under the New Mexico
Rural Infrastructure Act, Section 75-1-1, NMSA 1978,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Combining Balance Sheet
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006
Special Capital
Revenue Projects
Funds Funds Total
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 2,129,056 $ - $ 2,129,056
Other receivables 3,969 - 3,969
Due from other governments 35,600 - 35,600
Due from other funds 89,326 - 89,326
Total assets $ 2257951 § - $ 2257951
Liabilities and fund balance:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 35,831 % - 8 35,831

Accrued salaries 19,241 - 19,241

Due to other funds 89,326 1,525,248 1,614,574
Total liabilities 144,398 1,525,248 1,669,646

Fund Balances:
Unreserved for Capital Projects Funds

- (1,525,248) (1,525,248)
Unreserved for Special Revenue Funds 2,113,553 -

2,113,553
Total Fund Balance 2,113,553 (1,525,248) 588,305
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2257951 $ - $ 2257951

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006
Special Capital
Revenue Projects Totals
Funds Funds
Revenues:
State shared taxes $ 1,513,243 - 1,513,243
State allocation 328,241 - 328,241
Charges for services 169,600 - 169,600
Interest income 12,532 - 12,532
Federal grants 19,548 290,000 309,548
State grants 1,574,816 1,102,283 2,677,099
Other income 87,275 80,614 167,889
Total revenues 3,705,255 1,472,897 5,178,152
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 353,613 - 353,613
Public safety 1,282,058 - 1,282,058
Public works 13,361 - 13,361
Health & welfare 1,758,347 - 1,758,347
Debt service principal 7,798 - 7,798
Capital outlay 86,716 2,517,117 2,603,833
Total expenditures 3,501,893 2,517,117 6,019,010
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 203,362 (1,044,220) (840,858)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 238,330 - 238,330
Operating transfers out (149,541) - (149,541)
Total other financing sources (uses) 88,789 - 88,789
Net change in fund balance 292,151 (1,044,220) (752,069)
Fund balance — beginning of year 1,821,402 (481,028) 1,340,374
Fund balance — end of year $ 2,013553 $ (1,525)248) § 588,305

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Page 47



8y abed

‘SJuaLLIa)e]s [BIDUBUY 9S8y} Jo ed [eibajul ue ale ssjou Buikuedwoode sy

1SE'0Er'1 ¢ /sv'ey $ ¢£0.'e6l $ 9e0'opl $ 866 $ 86.'0l ¢ Glc'6¥9 $
$£6°L0%'L £8.'T2Y G16'6L1 9g0'avl 866 0v'8 G/£'6V9
PeS'LOV') £8.'22Zy G/6'6L1 geo'‘ovl 866 L0v'8 Glc'6v9
£28'2¢ $0.'9 gz.l'cl - - 16€'C -
20L'v1 - LLY'TL - - Lez'e -
izi'e $ voL'9 $ .52t $ - $ - $ 091 $ - $
LGE'0EY'L $ l8v'eTy $ €0.'e6l $ 9co'gvl $ 856 $ 86.'01 $ Glc'6p9 $
oze'es - oce'68 - - - -
LEO'LYE’L $ /sv'ecy $ L.€'%01 $ 9co'ovl $ 856 $ 86L'01 $ Glc'6¥9 $
lejoi-qng pung aAenuj (L9 %¥/1) abuey el (LD %8/1)
SWwie yels uoo8j0id pue wie4 IMma AQunoy
Juabipuy AyjesH a4 aoue|nguy
9002 ‘o¢ dunp
j99Ys e#duejeg Bujuiquon
sSpund anuaA3y |evads
Spund {EJU3WUIAA0EL) JolewuoN
VNN 40 ALNNOD
OJIX3W M3N 40 31ViS
9401

Z-O halux3

saoue|eg pund pue sajiqely |ejoL

saouejeg pun4 [e}01
sanuaAay |enads
110} paAJasalun
saouejeg pund

salj|iqer |ejol
spunj Jayjo o} ang
salejes paniooy
a|qefed sjunoooy
saniiqel]

sjessy [ejol
spund Jayj0 woi} ang
Aiojuanu|
SJUSWILIBAOL) JBUJQ Woly ang
S9|qBeAIadaY Jayl0
9|qeAlaoay saxe|
SJUBLIISAAU]
sjusjeAinb3 pue ysed
sjossy



6v abed

‘sjuaWa)e)s [eloueuly asay) Jo ped [eibajul ue ase sajou Builuedwoode ay |

LES'OVY’L $ €l 191'28 z8.l'or $ 21018 $ - $ -
viz'zes’t €l 19128 0zl'sy 162'2L - (L1L¥'06)
¥12'2es'L el 19128 ozL'sy 162'2L - (11¥'06)
L11'8LL - - 299'L 122'c - LI¥'06
9ze'68 - - - - - 9ze'e8
Lve'el - - 299'L 1/8'C - -

055’6 $ - - - $ ve $ - $ 680°L
LEE'0¥9’L $ €1 191°28 28.'ov $ zio'ig $ - $ -

9z¢'68 - - - - - -

009'G€ - - - 009'G€E - -
SO¥'SLS‘) $ €l 191'z28 z8L'op $ zZiv'sy $ - $ -

|ejo}-qng uoneaIddy 5994 weiboig Juswadiojuy uonuanald SaDINIAS
QAljeINWING Buipiooay esiesddeay MET Aouanbuijag plel4
a|luaanp ajuaanp
900Z ‘o¢ eunr
jeeys eouejeg Buiuiquon
spund enuaAay |eloedg
SpuUN [BJUBWIUIGAOEL) Jo[eWUON
VNN 40 ALNNOD
OOJIX3W M3N 40 31ViS
9j0¢

Z-O Haiyx3g

ssouejeg pund pue saniiqel [ejol

saouejeg pund |ejo
SaNUBASY [eads
110} paAIasalun
saoue|jeg pung

sajiiigel |ejol
spunj Jayio 0} sng
salejes panJooy
ajgeled sjunoddy
saniqen

sjossy |e10).
spun4 Jayj0 woyj anQg
Aiojuaau)
SJUSWILLIBAOL) JaYIO wol ang
$9|qeAI303Y JaYI0
8|qeAI209y saxe}
SJUBWISBAU|
sjusjeainb3 pue yseo

sjassy



05 @bed

‘sjuswiale}s jeloueul asay) jo ped jeibsjui ue ale ssjou BulAuedwoooe ay |

166'152' $ 0¥9'L0l $ - $ 206201 $ zzo'es $ 89/'25C $ 882'l6 $ - $
€6S'ELL'2 0v9°L0L - £vLL0L 118'vE LSY'0ST 882°/6 -
€5S'CLL'T 0v9'L0l - evLLol 118'vE LS¥'0SZ 882'/6 -
86€' vl - - 6SL'9 L12'LL 11€'T - -
9ze'68 - - - - - - -
L6l - - - - - = i
1£8'6E $ = $ - 6S.L'9 $ L'l $ Lie'C g - $ - $
166'L52'2 $ 0¥9'L0l $ - 206'20L $ 220'CS $ 89/.'2sC $ 882'l6 $ - $
9ze'68 - - - - - - -
009's€ = . - ¢ . . -
696'¢c 2 % 696'c " - = "
950'621'2 $ 0v9'L0L $ - €€6'€0) $ zzo'es $ 89L'¢se ¢ 882'L6 $ - $
lejol 8JSEM PIOS ABigug ang  Jeyue) Bujuses sjnysu} syawpedag sojeg Buissalppy
AajleA SaIQUIN fons and SWOH 8)Iq0N Jeiny
J88JUNIOA sJainsess]

9jo¢

-0 Haiyx3

9002 ‘0¢ aunp
j99yg asuejeg Buluiquo)
sSpung anuaaay |ejoadg
Spun4 [BJUBWIUIBAOE) JOfeWLON
VNN 40 ALNNOD
OOJIX3W M3N 40 31vV1S

sooueleqg pund pue sajiqer [ejo L

saouejeg pun4 |ejo]

SANUAAIY |eads

10} paAsasalun

ssoueeg puny

santiqer] jejol

spuny 1By 0} Qg

saueeS panooy
a|qehed Sjuncooy
m b3

en

sjassy [ejoL

spun4 Jayjo woyy ang

Aiojuanu|

SJUBWILIBA0Y) JYJ0 Wwoy ang
S9|qBAIR09Y JAYI0

8|qeAIg0ay saxe]
SJUBLWISALY

sjusjeainbg pue ysen

sjassy



1 abed
‘Sjuswale)s [eloueul asay) jo ped eibajul ue are ssjou BuiAuedwoooe ay

¥26°L62'} $ ¢€8L'TeY $ G9g'/8 $ o9go'ovl $ (2v0'9l) $ lov's $ GlE'6V9 $
12¥'602'L 066'80t €iv'LLE 10€'92 62.'61 (Fe9'vh) 829'¢8p

L6¥'Z6 £6L'€) (8¥0'¥22) GEL'6LL (122'6€) Lr0'eS L¥l'G9L
(L18'201) - - (L18'201) - - -

(118°204) (118'201) - - -

80€'002 €6L'cl (8%0'¥22) 9¥5'.22 (LL2's€) 1#0°'cS LvL'59L
9vG'L1E'2 06889 21£'690'L 00L'vLL 05209 608'L¥L 0v6'G62
LE'8SL'L 0.6'889 L1€'690°}L = - - 7

661'619 = & 00L'vLL 0509 608'LpL 0v6'662
$68'1.6'2 £9.'20L 62¢'SH8 9yZ'Zre 6.6'¥2 058'00Z 189'19¥

186'% 1£6 - - 000'% -

6L¥'v0¢ 629'201 - - 058'961 -

£92'9€L €9.'9¢. - - - -

£58'6 259'6 - - 102 - -

688'€2 - - - 688'cZ - -

€E6°L6¥'L $ 111'e69 $ - $ oveve $ 688 $ - $ 189'19¥% $

|ejo}-qng pung aARenIu| (149 %¥/1) abuey el (LA %8/1)
swie;n el uoyoajoid pue wiey IMma Aunod
abipy| AyjesH a4 aouenquiy
900Z “0¢ aunf papu3 JeaA ayj 104
saosuejeg pund N| sebueys pue ‘sainjjpuadxg ‘sanuaiay jo juawsiels Hujuiquo
SpuUNng anNudAdY [ejrads
Spund [EJUWIUIIA0KL) JofewtuoN
VNN 40 ALNNOD
ODIX3W M3IN 40 31visS
90

¢-O 1qyx3

JeaA jo pug - saduejeg pung
Jea, Jo Buiuuibag - seduefeqg pund
saouejeg pun4 ul abueyd 18N

(sesn) saounog Buoueuly Jayio |ejol
QO siajsuel)
(sasn) saainog Buoueul4 JoYIO

sainppuadx3 JOAQ SaNUaASY (Aouaioyaq) sseoxg

sainyipuadx3 jejol
Kepno [eyded
[ediound 801188 19ad
alejjap pue YjeaH
SHIOM 2l|and
Ayages olland
JUBWILLIBAQL) [Beiduas)
juauny
samyipuadx3

SaNUBASY [E10 L
awodu| JaY10
sjuels) ejels
sjuels) |esspa4
awoou| Jsaau|
$301A198 Joy sabieyd
uoledo|ly dels
saxe] paleys 9jelg
SanuaAay



2 abed

‘sjuswale)s [e1oueul asau) Jo Yed [eiBajul ue ale sajou BulAuedwosoe ay |

P09'ZLY'L $ €l $ 191'C8 $ ozi'sy $ I16L'LL - $ (Liv'06) $
12e'peT’ L €l 8€6'¢L 961°22 glv'se (ev6'L1) (9z¢'68)

£82'8LL 0 629'S ¥26'L1L GIE'TY £v6'LL (580°1)
(19Z'111) - - - (0s¥'c) - -
(Loz'LLL) - (0s'€) - -

¥v5'682 0 629'8 ¥26'L) GZ8'sy £¥6'L) (580'1)

26S'€50°C 0 05882 161'8P 199'28€ 0 8ee'L LT

8¥e'8e - 8ve'ge - =

Lye'86L')L - - - - - -

0S8'6L1°L - - - cLe'6ve - gee'hie

1¥0'LL - 058'82 L61'8Y - - -

9E1'SrE'S 0 6L¥'LE 121'99 98p'CER £v6°'LL £52'04L2

£85°Z¢ - - €0L'6 £v6'LL -

£50°'8€8 - - 12e'eze - £52'012

11€'95.L - - 8¥5'6) - -

0.2'01L - - - Ly - -

009'€0l 6L¥'LE 121'99 - -

93¢'¥0} - - - 16V'08 - -

€£6'L6¥'L $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $

|ejo-qng uopealddy $994 weiboid juawsoioug uonusAald L VETS
aAeInwnD Buipioday |esieiddeay MeT Aouanbujjaq plai4
ajusanp a|luaanp
9002 ‘0€ dun papu3 Jea, ay} Jod
sasuejeg pung N safuey) pue ‘sainjipuadx3 ‘sanuaAay jo juawajels buluiquod
spund anuaAsy |e1dadg
Spund [ejusWIuIBA0S) JOofelUON
VNN1 40 ALNNOD
OJIX3W M3N 40 31VIS
9406

<O Naiyxy

JeaA Jo pugj - seduejeg pund
Jea Jo Bujuuibag - saduejeg pund
saouejeg pun4 ul 8buey) 19N

(sasn) saounog Buidueul4 JaylQ {e1oL
NQ si9ysuel]
(sasn) sa2inog Buueul4 JBYIO

sainypuadx3 JaaQ) sanuaaay (Aoualoyaq) sseoxy

sainyipuadx3 [ej0].
KepnQ [eyded
ledidund @21A19G 1930
2Jej|9M pue yjesH
SHIOM 2lland
fiajes onand
JUSWUIDAOYL) [B18UdS)
Juaung
sainypuadx3y

SaNUaAaYy [ejo].
awoou| Jayio
Sjuel9) ajes
SJueIS) [BI9pa4
awoou| Jsalaju|
S92IAI9S J0} Sabieyd
uoneoo||y ajels
saxe] paleys ajels
sanuanay



£ abed

‘sjuaLuBlels [eroueuy asay) Jo ped [eibajul ue ase sajou BuiAuedwoooe ay ),

£22's/8'L $ 1e2'es - $ epLls $ Lie'slL $ ovo'Tye $ 882'/6 -
cov'ies'L 265'99 198'L¢ 610'602 $60'Z1L 859'69) LL2'LE £pl
128'sS (Log'et) (L98'L£) (zz8'251) 9lz'e 886'2L 118'S (ev1)
(Lps'spL) - (298'2¢) - - - 0£2) (ev1)
(Lvs'stl) - (298'2¢) - - - (022) (ev1)
29¢e'e0e (tog'es) - (z18'284) 9iz'e 886'2. Lv8'S 0
£68°'105'S 19E'EL - 122'¥61 ¥81'65 [ §55'22 0
gll'es - - - - 89¢'s¥ - -
86.'L % - - - 86.'L - -
Lye'ess'L - - = - - - 3
leg'sl 19g'sl - - - - - -
850'282'L - - - - 802201 - -
£l9'ese o - 122'v6l $82'66 - §55'22 =
§62'S0.'E - - GGE'9E 000'99 29¢2'L€C 20¥'82 0
G/2'.8 % - S¥0'L2 - Sbe's zov'sZ -
£50'8¢8 & - - < - - -
L18'962 # - - - - - -
2es'zL = - - - z92'2 - -
009'691 " - - 000'99 - -

1¥2'8ze - - - - §58'€22 - -
£HZ'ELS'L $ - - $ ole'st $ - $ - $ - -

|ejol Q)SeM PIOS ABiau3g aynq J8ua) Buluea ansu| syuswypedag sajeg Buissalppy
AaljeA sasquuin ons all4 SWOoH 9)Iqon leany
J93UNjOA s Jamseal)
900Z ‘0 dunf papug JeaA ayj JoJ
sasuefeg pung N| sabueys pue ‘sainjjpuadxz ‘sanuaasy o juswaie)s buuiquon
spun4 anuaAay [e1oadg
SpuUN4 |eJUBWUIAA0L) JofewUoN
VNNT 40 ALNNOD
ODIX3AW MIN 40 31ViS
9409

2-O 1qiuyx3

JBaA 4O pug - ssouejeqg pund

Jeaa Jo Buluuibag - saouejeg pund

seouejeg pund Ul abuey) j1oN

(ses) sa24nog Buioueuly JBYIO [e10L

O siajsuel]

(sasn) ssa.nog bBuwueuld BylO

sainypuadx3 JaAQ sanusAdY (Aouaioya(q) ssaoxg

sainypuadx3 |ejol
Aepno (eyded
[ediduug 821A198 198Q

SIBj|9M pUe LeaH
SHOM 21jqnd
A9geg aland

JUBLILIBAOY) |BelBuRD)

Jaung
sainypuadxg

SONUBASY (8]0
sLwoou| J2YI0
SR
SjUBIS) [RISpa4
BwWoou| Jsase|
$90I1AI9S 10} sableys
uonedo|ly siels
soxe] peleys alelg

SBNUBADY



Exhibit G-3

STATE OF NEW MEXI1CO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Ambulance 1/8% GRT Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
State shared taxes $ 375,000 S 375,000 S 461,687 § 86,687
Total revenues 375,000 375,000 461,687 86,687
Beginning cash: 544,044 544,044
919,044 919,044
Expenditures:
Health and welfare
Operating expenses 275,000 375,000 356,356 18,644
Capital outlay 38,000 36,800 - 36,800
Total expenditures 313,000 411,800 356,356 55,444
Excess (deficiency) revenues
Over expenditures 105,331
Other financing sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance 105,331
Difference between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued expenses 60,416
Fund balances — beginning of year 483,628
Fund balances — end of year $ 649,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-4
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund
DWI Grant Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 133,691 $ 133,691 $ 200,850 $ 67,159
Total revenues 133,691 133,691 200,850 67,159
Beginning cash - -
133,691 133,691
Expenditures:
Health & welfare
Personnel expenses 91,430 95,336 92,382 2,954
Operating expenses 45,194 55,588 54,990 598
Total expenditures 136,624 150,924 147,372 3,552
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 53,478
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance 53,478
Difference between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued expenses 437)
Fund balances — beginning of year (44,634)
Fund balances — end of year $ 8,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund
Farm and Range Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Exhibit G-5

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Private sources $ 23,350 $ 23,350 $ 24,778 1,428
Interest income - - 201 201
Total revenues 23,350 23,350 24,979 1,629
Beginning cash 19,729 19,729
43,079 43,079
Expenditures:
General government
Operating expenses 50,000 60,750 60,750 -
Total expenditures 50,000 60,750 60,750 -
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures (35,771)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 17,000 17,000 17,000 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 17,000 -
Net change in fund balance (18,771)
Fund balances — beginning of year 19,729
Fund balances — end of year $ 958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA

Special Revenue Fund
Fire Protection Fund (1/4% GRT)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total revenues

Beginning cash

Expenditures:
Public safety
Operating expenses
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Difference between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued expenses

Fund balances — beginning of year

Fund balances — end of year

For the Year-Ended June 30,2006

Exhibit G-6

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
5 346,500 $ 346,500 $ 342,246 (4,254)
346,500 346,500 342,246 (4,254)
34,702 34,702
381,202 381,202
243,019 307,519 129,100 178,419
243,019 307,519 129,100 178,419
213,146
(107,811) (107,811) (107,811) -
(107,811) (107,811) (107,811) -
105,335
14,400
26,301
$ 146,036

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-7

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Healthy Start Initiative Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 835,780 § 835,780 % 858,909 $ 23,129
Total revenues 835,780 835,780 858,909 23,129
Beginning cash 202,367 202,367
1,038,147 1,038,147
Expenditures:
Health and welfare
Personnel expenses 430,546 444217 442554 1,663
Operating expenses 346,504 401,333 387,411 13,922
Total expenditures 777,050 845,550 829,965 15,585
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 28,944
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 92,610 92,610 92,610 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 92,610 92,610 92,610 -
Net change in fund balance 121,554
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue (13,580)
Adjust accrued expenses (239,412)
(252,992)
Fund balances — beginning of year 311,413
Fund balances — end of year $ 179,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-8
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund
Indigent Hospital Claims Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Health care county supplement 193,333 § 193,333 $ - (193,333)
Indigent care revenue 580,000 580,000 693,111 113,111
Interest income 8,000 8,000 9,652 1,652
Total revenues 781,333 781,333 702,763 (78,570)
Beginning cash 430,060 430,060
1,211,393 1,211,393
Expenditures:
Health and welfare
Personnel expenses 64,050 64,050 63,420 630
Operating expenses 712,830 819,343 639,971 179,426
Total expenditures 76,880 883,393 703,337 180,056
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures (574)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance (574)
Difference between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued expenses 14,367
Fund balances — beginning of year 408,990
Fund balances — end of year $ 422,783

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-9

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Juvenile Field Services Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GA AP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 164,498 $ 164,498 §$ 210,253  $ 45,755
Miscellaneous revenue - - 937 937
Total revenues 164,498 164,498 211,190 46,692
Beginning cash - -
164,498 164,498
Expenditures:
General government
Operating expenses 257,084 347,084 270,209 76,875
Total expenditures 257,084 347,084 270,209 76,875

Excess (deficiency) revenues

over expenditures (59,019

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balance (59,019)
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP

Adjust accrued revenue 937)

Adjust accrued expenses 58,871 57,934
Fund balances — beginning of year (89,326)
Fund balances - end of year $ (90,411)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-10
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Law Enforcement Protection Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 214,800 $ 214,800 $ 402,247 $ 187,447
Interest income - - 417 417
Miscellaneous revenue - - 9,703 9,703
Total revenues 214,800 214,800 412,367 197,567
Beginning cash 20,935 20,935
235,735 235,735
Expenditures:
Public safety
Personnel expenses 101,627 246,293 178,032 68,261
Operating expenses 55,800 204,250 116,661 87,589
Capital outlay 32,800 40,800 108,605 (67,805)
Total expenditures 190,227 491,343 403,298 88,045
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 9,069
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (3,450) (3,450) (3,450) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,450) (3,450) (3,450) -
Net change in fund balance 5,619
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue 21,119
Adjust accrued expenses 15,637 36,756
Fund balances — beginning of year 35,416
Fund balances — end of year 3 77,791

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-11

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Reappraisal Program Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 54,000 $ 54,000 $ 66,121 $ 12,121
Total revenues 54,000 54,000 66,121 12,121
Beginning cash 28,116 28,116
82,116 82,116
Expenditures:
General government
Personnel expenses 54,507 54,728 45,188 9,540
Operating expenses 9,518 12,418 2,268 10,150
Capital outlay 16,800 13,678 - 13,678
Total expenditures 35,600 35,600 47,456 33,368
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 18,665
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance 18,665
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued expenses (741)
Fund balances — beginning of year 27,196
Fund balances — end of year $ 45,120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund
Recording Fees Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Charges for services
Total revenues

Beginning cash

Expenditures:
General government
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances — beginning of year

Fund balances — end of year

Exhibit G-12

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
$ 25,000 $ 25,000 37479 § 12,479
25,000 25,000 37,479 12,479
73,538 73,538
98,538 98,538
5,000 5,000 2,116 2,884
30,000 30,000 26,734 3,266
35,000 35,000 28,850 6,150
8,629
8,629
73,538
82,167

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-13
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Treasurer’s Mobile Home Sales Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GA AP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 32,500 $ 32500 $ 28402 $ (4,368)
Total revenues 32,500 32,500 28,402 (4,368)
Beginning cash 91,711 91,711
124,211 124,211
Expenditures:
General government
Operating expenses 5,000 5,000 2,556 2,444
Capital outlay 25,000 25,000 19,999 5,001
Total expenditures 30,000 30,000 22,555 7,445
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 5,847
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (270) (270) (270) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (270) (270) (270) -
Net change in fund balance 5,577
Fund balances — beginning of year 91,711
Fund balances — end of year $ 97,288

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit G-14
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Volunteer Fire Departments Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 90,275 $ 90,275 $ 221,302 $ 131,027
Interest income - - 2,262 2,262
Total revenues 90,275 90,275 223,564 133,289
Beginning cash 169,658 169,658
259,933 259,933
Expenditures:
Cooks Peak
Operating expenses 27,339 30,339 21,023 9,316
Capital outlay 8,000 8,000 7,119 881
Total Cooks Peak expenditures 35,339 38,339 28,142 10,197
Sunshine Valley
Operating expenses 53,300 56,000 36,788 19,212
Capital outlay 20,000 30,000 21,307 8,693
Total Sunshine Valley expenditures 73,300 86,000 58,095 27,905
Florida Mountain
Operating expenses 31,870 39,870 30,322 9,548
Capital outlay 98,000 90,000 31,705 58,295
Total Florida Mountain expenditures 129,870 129,870 62,027 67,843
Total expenditures 238,509 254,209 148,264 105,945
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 75,300
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 7,811 7,811 7,811 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 7,811 7,811 7,811 -
Net change in fund balance 83,111
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue 7,798
Adjust accrued expense (10,110) 2,312)
Fund balances — beginning of year 169,658
Fund balances — end of year $ 250,457

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund
Sirolli Institute Fund

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
Private sources
Intergovernmental
Total revenues

Beginning cash

Expenditures:

Health and welfare
Personnel expenses
Operating expenses

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued expenses

Fund balances — beginning of year

Fund balances — end of year

Exhibit G-15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
$ 30,500 § 30,500 § 30,500 $ -
36,200 36,200 35,500 (700)
66,700 66,700 66,000 (700)
38,304 38,304
105,004 105,004
51,7112 26,448 19,783 6,665
50,834 76,098 48,999 27,099
102,546 102,546 68,782 33,764
(2,782)
16,500 16,500 16,500 -
16,500 16,500 16,500 -
13,718
8,998
12,095
3 34,811



Exhibit G-16
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund

Mimbres Valley Learning Center Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 198,746 3 48,746
Intergovernmental 15,000 15,000 16,166 1,166
Miscellaneous - - 910 910
Total revenues 165,000 165,000 215,822 47,822
Beginning cash 205,705 205,705
370,705 370,705
Expenditures:
Health and welfare
Operating expenses 200,000 200,000 137,468 62,532
Total expenditures 200,000 200,000 137,468 62,532
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures 78,354
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Transfers out (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance 78,354
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue (179,467)
Adjust accrued expenses (6,759) (186,226)
Fund balances — beginning of year 209,015
Fund balances — end of year $ 101,143

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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; Exhibit G-17
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Special Revenue Fund
Selid Waste Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - 8 - 3 - 8 -
Total revenues - - - -
Beginning cash 57,465 57,465
57,465 57,465
Expenditures:
General government
Capital outlay 57,465 111,874 4,234 107,640
Total expenditures 57,465 111,874 4234 107,640
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures (4,234)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 54,409 54,409 54,409 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 54,409 54,409 54,409 -
Net change in fund balance 50,175
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue (9,127)
Fund balances — beginning of year 66,592
Fund balances — end of year $ 107,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS



Assets:
Cash and investments
Due from other funds
Total assets

Liabilities and fund balance:
Liabilities:
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved

Total fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance

Exhibit H-1

Page 1 of 2
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND TYPES
Combining Balance Sheet
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006
Port of Entry CDBG
and Distance Grants
Learning Senior MVLC Courthouse
Center Center Addition Renovation Totals
$ - - - -
3 N - - -
$ 177,481 1,347,767 1,525,248
177,481 1,347,767 1,525,248
- (177,481) (1,347,767) (1,525,248)
(177,481) (1,347,767) (1,525,248)
$ - - - -

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Revenues:
Federal grant
State grant
Other revenue
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Exhibit H-1

Page 2 of 2
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND TYPES
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006
Port of Entry CDBG
and Distance Grants
Learning Senior MVLC Courthouse
Center Center Addition Renovation Totals
- $ - 3 290,000 $ 290,000
33,808 447,220 361,186 260,069 1,102,283
80,614 - 80,614
33,808 447,220 441,800 550,069 1,472,897
- 619,281 1,897,836 2,517,117
- 619,281 1,897,836 2,517,117
33,808 447,220 (177,481) (1,347,767) (1,044,220)
33,808 447,220 (177,481) (1,347,767) (1,044,220)
(33,808) (447,220) - - (481,028)

Fund Balance — Beginning of Year

Fund Balance — End of Year

-3 -

$ (177,481) $

(1,347,767) $  (1,525,248)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Capital Projects Fund
Mimbres Valley Learning Center Addition Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GA AP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues:
State grant
Other revenue
Total revenues

Beginning cash

Expenditures:
General government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue

Fund balances — beginning of year

Fund balances — end of year

Exhibit H-2

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
$ 441,000 441,000 361,186 (79,184)
- - 80,614 80,614
441,000 441,000 441,800 800
441,000 441,000
691,800 691,800 619,281 72,519
691,800 691,800 619,281 72,519
(177,481)
(177,481)
(177,481)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit H-3

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Capital Projects Fund

Courthouse Renovation Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Federal grant $ 340,000 340,000 290,000 (50,000)
State grant 775,000 775,000 675,831 (99,169)
Other revenue 25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
Total revenues 1,140,000 1,140,000 965,831 (174,169)
Beginning cash - -
1,140,000 1,140,000
Expenditures:
General government
Capital outlay 2,023,581 2,023,825 1,897,836 125,989
Total expenditures 2,023,581 2,023,825 1,897,836 125,989
Excess (deficiency) revenues
over expenditures (932,005)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance (932,005)
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue (415,762)
Fund balances — beginning of year -
Fund balances — end of year $  (1,347,767)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Proprietary Fund
Detention Center Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Variances
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual (Unfavorable)
(Non-GAAP
Original Final Basis) Final to Actual
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,549,919 6,549,919 6,318,789 (231,130)
Bond income 400,000 400,000 692,531 292,531
Interest income 42,000 42,000 77,502 35,502
Total revenues 6,991,919 6,991,919 7,088,822 96,903
Beginning cash 4,744,024 4,744,024
11,735,943 11,735,943
Expenditures:
Personnel expenses 4,393,059 4,408,859 4,098,594 310,265
Operating expenses 2,040,996 2,125,897 1,978,882 147,015
Capital outlay 389,000 288,300 214,940 73,360
Debt service 2,933,089 2,933,089 2,933,089 -
Total expenditures 9,756,144 9,756,145 9,225,505 530,640

Excess (deficiency) revenues

over expenditures (2,136,683)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (75) (75) (75) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (75) (75) (75) -
Net change in fund balance (2,136,758)
Differences between GAAP and Non-GAAP
Adjust accrued revenue 14,824
Adjust accrued expenses 427,084
Depreciation (264,881)
Debt service 2,763,724
Capital 214,940 3,155,691
Fund balances — beginning of year 7,636,415
Fund balances — end of year $ 8,655,348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Fiduciary Funds — Agency Funds
June 30, 2006

Fiduciary Funds — Agency
These funds are used to account for monies held by the County in a custodial capacity.

Taxes Collected for Others — As the taxing and collecting authority for property taxes, the County maintains this
fund to account for taxes collected on behalf of other governments until their distribution.

Inmate Accounts — The County holds and disburses funds in a custodial capacity for inmates housed at the County
Detention Center.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit J

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities — Agency Funds
June 30,2006
June 30, June 30,
Taxes Collected for Others 2005 Additions Deletions 2006
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 123,182 § 3,353,757 $ 3,346,835 § 130,104
Property taxes receivable 403,568 871,194 403,568 871,194
Total assets $ 526,750 $ 4224951 $ 3,750,403 $ 1,001,298
Liabilities
Due to other governments  $ 469,110 $ 4,194,660 $ 3,730,286 $ 933,484
Prepaid taxes 2,548 4,631 2,699 4,480
Overpayment of taxes 7,233 24,483 17,208 14,508
Taxes paid in advance 17,249 1,177 - 18,426
Due to taxpayers 30,610 - 210 30,400
Total liabilities $ 526,750 $ 4224951 $ 3,750,403 $ 1,001,298
Inmate Accounts
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,600 $ 416,847 $ 427382 $ 3,065
Due from others -
Total assets $ 13,600 $ 416,847 $ 427,382 § 3,065
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,791 3 - 3 1,791 % -
Due to inmates 11,809 416,847 425,591 3,065
Total liabilities $ 13,600 3 416,847 $ 427382 § 3,065
Total Assets
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 136,782 $ 3,770,604 $ 3,774,217 § 133,169
Property taxes receivable 403,568 871,194 403,568 871,194
Total assets $ 540350 $ 4,641,798 $ 4,177,785 $ 1,004,363
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,791 $ - 3 1,791 § -
Due to inmates 11,809 416,847 425,591 3,065
Due to other governments 469,110 4,194,660 3,730,286 933,484
Prepaid taxes 2,548 4,631 2,699 4,480
Overpayment of taxes 7,233 224,483 17,208 14,508
Taxes paid in advance 17,249 1,177 - 18,426
Due to taxpayers 30,610 - 210 30,400
Total liabilities $ 540350 $ 4,641,798 $ 4,177,785 $ 1,004,363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SUPPORTING SCHEDULES



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Depositaries
June 30, 2006
Amount Plus Less Balance
Type Per Bank DIT O/S Cks Per Books

First New Mexico NOW CK 3 511,586 $ 40,162 551,748 $ -
First New Mexico MM 1,228,018 19,936 1,208,082
First New Mexico SV 530,016 530,016
First New Mexico CK 1,861 1,861
First New Mexico CK 1,204 1,204
Wells Fargo CK 309,898 309,898
Subtotal 2,582,583 40,162 571,684 2,051,061
Plus cash equivalents ( Note 4) 4,946,731
Type:

CK=Checking Plus: Cash on hand 375
MM=Money Market

SV=Savings $ 6,998,167

First New Wells
Mexico Fargo Total

Schedule 1

Amount Held in Bank June 30, 2006 5 2,272,685

Less FDIC Insurance

Uninsured Public Funds
50% Collateral Requirement

(Section 6-10-17 NMSA-1978)

Pledged Security

Over (Under) Collateral

$ 309,808 $ 2,582,583

100,000 100,000 200,000
2,172,685 209,898 2,382,583
1,086,342 104,949 1,191,291
1,910,000 539,627 2,449,627
$ 823656 $ 434,678 $ 1258336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Schedule 2

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Collateral Pledged by Depository for Public Funds
June 30,2006
FAIR MARKET NAME AND LOCATION
DESCRIPTION VALUE OF SAFEKEEPER
WFBS/WFBNW
CUSIP#31409CV69. FNCL
Maturing 05/01/36 $ 471,250 Wells Fargo California
WFBS/WFBNW
CUSIP#36225BG36. GNSF
Maturing 10/15/29 8,433 Wells Fargo California
WFBS/WFBNW
CUSIP#36225BNS3. G2SF
Maturing 06/20/31 59,944 Wells Fargo California
Texas Independent Bank,
FHLB 785,000 Dallas, TX
Bloomfield NM School
District. CUSIP#590662AT9 Texas Independent Bank,
Maturing 10/01/12 175,000 Dallas, TX
Quemado ISD Bond,
CUSIP#149321BR1. Texas Independent Bank,
Maturing 07/15/15 100,000 Dallas, TX
Jemez, NM Bond.
CUSIP#475868CL7. Texas Independent Bank,
Maturing 08/01/11 100,000 Dallas, TX
Texas Independent Bank,
Gallup. Maturing 08/01/17 500,000 Dallas, TX
Tucumcari, NM Bond.
CUSIP #898881CA3, Texas Independent Bank,
Maturing 08/01/12 200,000 Dallas, TX
Wagon Mound, NM,
CUSIP#930532AK2, Texas Independent Bank,
Maturing 10/01/11 50,000 Dallas, TX
$ 2,449,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Joint Services
Participants
Responsible Party

Description

Period
Project Costs
County Contribution

Audit responsibility

Participants
Responsible Party

Description

Period
Project Costs
County Contribution

Audit responsibility

Schedule 3
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Joint Powers Agreements
June 30,2006

County of Luna and the City of Deming

City of Deming

Fire protection services, landfill operations, recreation services,
library services, EMS and indigent ambulance services, ETZ,
transportation, and purchase of new ambulance

July 1,2005-June 30, 2006

$490,500

City of Deming

County of Luna and the Village of Columbus

Village of Columbus

Fire protection services, landfill operations, recreation services,
library services, EMS and indigent ambulance services, and health
care clinic

July 1, 2005-June 30, 2006

$65,000

$47,500

City of Deming

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Schedule 4

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Tax Roll Reconciliation
June 30,2006

Property Taxes Receivable, Beginning of Year $ 864,027
Changes to Tax Roll:

Net Taxes Charged to Treasurer for Fiscal Year 6,939,405
Adjustments:

Increases in Taxes Receivables 6,426

Charge Off of Taxes Receivables -

Total Receivables Prior to Collections 7,866,456
Collections for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 (6,938,664)
Property Taxes Receivable, End of Year 3 871,194
Property Taxes Receivable by years:

1995 $ 4,948

1996 5,979

1997 5,487

1998 8,532

1999 7,888

2000 10,779

2001 17,767

2002 43,091

2003 84,503

2004 181,885

2005 500,335
Total Taxes Receivable $ 871,194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Courthouse renovations
Planning grant
Fairground improvements
Museum renovation
Juvenile field services
Beautification grant

Tire recycling

Mimbres Valley Learning Center
Healthy Start Initiative
DWI grant

Border security grant
HIDTA

Schedule 6

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
SCHEDULE OF GRANT AGREEMENTS
JUNE 30,2006
State Grants Federal Grants Total
675,831 290,000 965,831
- 20,967 20,967
75,726 - 75,726
67,242 - 67,242
205,395 - 205,395
23,827 23,827
95,722 95,722
361,186 361,186
179,939 736,763 916,702
5,400 5,400
150,000 150,000
- 19,548 19,548
$ 1,840,268 $ 1,067,278 $ 2,907,546

Totals

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Schedule 7

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30,2006
Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA Program or Award
Program Title Number Grant Number Amount Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human 93926 H67MC00011-4-00 736,763 736,763

Services

Healthy Start Initiative
U.S. Department of the Interior 15.929  35-03-MLI-1373 340,000 290,000

Passed through National Park Service
Save America’s Treasures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 14218  04-C-NR-I-6-G-88 25,000 20,967

Development

Passed through the New Mexico Department

of Finance and Administration-Local

Government Division

Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance
Executive Office of the President
Passed through the Office of National
Drug Control Policy

NM Management and Coordination 07.XXX 19,548 19,548

Total $ 1121311 % 1,067,278

Note | Basis of Presentation

The above Schedule of Expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the County of
Luna and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations.” Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in preparation of, the basic financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AT MARCUS,

FAIRALL,
BRISTOL + CO., L.L.P.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCITAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Domingo P. Martinez, CGFM State Auditor
and

Board of County Commissioners

County of Luna

Deming, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of County of Luna, as of and for the year-ended June
30, 2006, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We
have also audited the financial statements of each of the County’s non-major governmental funds presented as
supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for
the year-ended June 30, 2006, as listed in the table of contents. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and with standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the County of Luna’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of Luna’s internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions.
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the County’s
ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the
financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as items and 06-01, 06-02.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts
that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might
be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions described above is a
material weakness.

A Firm of Certified Public Accountants
6090 SURETY, SUITE 100 e EL PAEEFTX 79905 * (215) 775-1040
FACSIMILE: (915) 775-1849 » marcfair@marcfair.com



Cormnpliance with Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Luna’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed instances of non-compliance or other matters that we are required to report under
Government Auditing Standards and that are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as Items 06-03, 06-04, 06-05, and 06-06.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management, other
authorized persons within the County, the New Mexico State Auditor, the New Mexico State Legislature and its

committees, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Marcus, Fairall, Bristol + Co., LLP
El Paso, Texas

October 20, 2006
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MARCUS,
FAIRALL,
BRISTOL + CO., L.L.P.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Domingo P. Martinez, CGFM, State Auditor
and

Board of County Commissioners

County of Luna

Luna, New Mexico

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the County of Luna with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the year-ended June 30, 2006. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the County of Luna’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County
of Luna’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes the examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the County of Luna’s compliance with those requirements and performing of such other
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County of Luna’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion the County of Luna complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements that
apply to each of its major federal programs for the year-ended June 30, 2006.

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the County of Luna’s is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the County of Luna’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program, in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in

accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control that might be considered to be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level
the risk that noncompliance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants caused by
error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management, other
authorized persons within the County, the New Mexico State Auditor, the New Mexico State Legislature and its

committees, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Do oo JB [ i RS, S

Marcus, Fairall, Bristol + Co., LLP
El Paso, Texas

October 20, 2006
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year-Ended June 30, 2006

Section I — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified?
Reportable condition (s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
e  Material weakness (es) identified?
e Reportable condition (s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weakness (es)?

Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance with major programs: Unqualified

e  Any audit findings disclosed that
are required to be reported in
Accordance with Section 510(a)
of Circular A-133?

Identification of Major Programs:

CDFA Number
N/A

93.926

15.929

14.218

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

Yes X No

X Yes None reported
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X None reported
Yes X No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Funding,

Executive Office of the President, Passed through the
Office of National Drug Control Policy

Healthy Start Initiative.

U.S, Department of the Interior, Passed through National
Park Service, Save America’s Treasurers

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
Passed through New Mexico Department of Finance,

Local Government Division, Zoning and Subdivision
Ordinance

5 __ 300,000

X Yes No
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations
June 30, 2006

Section II — Findings — Financial Statements

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:
2005-01 PERA Exempt Employees Resolved
2005-02 Purchase Card Usage by Non-County Employee Resolved
2005-03 Investment Schedule not Properly Maintained Resolved
2005-04 Purchase of Unusual Items — Lack of Documentation Resolved
2005-05 Disposal of Fixed Assets Not Authorized Repeated
2005-06 Audit Submitted to the New Mexico State Auditor After Due
Date Resolved
2005-07 Large Purchases not Approved by Commission Resolved
2004-01 Documentation of Business Purpose for Trip Resolved
2004-04 One Week Continuous Vacation Not Required Resolved
2004-05 Use of Office Space/Sensitive Records Resolved
2004-06 Fringe Benefits Resolved
2004-07 Purchase Order Dated After Invoice Repeated
2002-01 Maintenance of Taxes Receivable (Levied/Uncollected) by
Agency Repeated
CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS:

Finding 06-01 Disposal of Capital Assets not Authorized

Condition
During our testwork on fixed assets, we noted that proposed dispositions were not submitted to the State Auditor in
writing with 30 days prior to the disposition date.

Criteria
At lease 30 days prior to the disposition of a fixed asset, written notification of the proposed disposition must be sent
to the State Auditor.

Cause
The Procurement Specialist was not notified of fixed asset dispositions until after they were disposed of and
therefore, was not able to timely notify the State Auditor’s Office of dispositions.

Effect
Non-compliance with state requirements for disposition of fixed assets under New Mexico Statute Sections 13-6-1
and 13-6-2 NMSA 1978.

Recommendation

Policies and procedures should be established that require the notification of the Procurement Specialist at least 30
days prior to any dispositions so that notification can be made to the State Auditor.

Response
Management has implemented procedures to insure compliance in the future.

Finding 06-02 Purchase Order Dated after Invoice Date

Condition
During our testwork over disbursements, we noted that nine purchase orders were dated after the invoice date. (Out
of a sample of 30 disbursements tested)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations
June 30,2006

Section II — Findings — Financial Statements (continued)

Finding 06-02 Purchase Order Dated after Invoice Date (continued)

Criteria
Good internal controls require that there is a clear understanding of the procedures by County personnel as to
purchasing and documentation required.

Cause
The County personnel did not have adequate monitoring to ensure compliance on purchase orders.

Effect
County policies were not followed.

Recommendation

Implement a procedure to ensure that no invoices are to be paid without a legible date and that these dates are
reviewed to verify that proper procurement procedures were followed.

Response
Management has implemented procedures to insure compliance in the future.

Finding 06-03 Maintenance of Taxes Receivable (Levied/Uncollected) by Agency

Condition
The County does not maintain Taxes Receivable by Agency for ten years back bur rather taxes receivable are
maintained for only seven years back.

Criteria
The information is necessary for proper reporting of taxes receivable to other agencies and for proper recording of
the County’s own Taxes Receivable Revenue.

Cause
The Treasurer’s Office was unaware that levied but uncollected taxes receivable were required to be maintained by
Agency.

Effect
Non-compliance with Tax Roll Maintenance requirements.

Recommendation

The Treasurer’s office should go back ten years and extract collection information for each agency by year against
the levy for that year and maintain future collections/levies by agency concurrently.

Response
Management has implemented procedures to insure compliance in the future.

Finding 06-04 Failure to File Related-Party Disclosures

Condition
During our testwork on related-party transactions, we noted that the County Commissioners filed the required
documentation. Other officials and employees had not complied with the policy.

Criteria

The County requires its officials and employees to periodically file a statement with the County Clerk to disclose
related-party relationships and transactions.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations
June 30,2006

Section II — Findings — Financial Statements (continued)

Finding 06-04 Failure to File Related-Party Disclosures (continued)

Cause
Failure by County employees to monitor the filing of the required related-party documentation.

Effect
Non-compliance with County requirements regarding the disclosure of potential related-party transactions.

Recommendation

The County employees should more closely monitor and review the related-party documentation to ensure that the
file stays current.

Response
Management has implemented procedures to insure compliance in the future.

Finding 06-05 Improper Use of Proceeds from Sale of Vehicles

Condition
There is no record of the proceeds from the sale of confiscated vehicles being used for drug abuse treatment
services.

Criteria

Section 31-27-7, NMSA 1978, requires remaining balances from the sale of seized property be treated as an agency
fund and used for drug abuse treatment.

Cause
The proceeds were deposited in the Detention Center Fund and used for operating expenses.

Effect
The County failed to use the proceeds as designated by state statutes.

Recommendation
The County should monitor all proceeds received from sales and verify that they are being used properly.

Response
This recommendation will be implemented.

Finding 06-06 Failure to Submit Budget on a Modified Accrual Basis

Condition
The County did not submit the 2005-2006 budget on a modified accrual basis.

Criteria
In accordance with the General Appropriations Act of 2004 which established the modified accrual basis of

accounting as the budgetary basis of accounting for the State of New Mexico beginning in fiscal year ended 2005.

Cause
The County employees were not aware of the requirement.

Effect
The County failed to use the budget procedures required by the State.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations
June 30,2006

Section II — Findings — Financial Statements (continued)

Finding 06-06 Failure to Submit Budget on a Modified Accrual Basis (continued)

Recommendation
The County should implement and monitor all budget procedures to ensure the budget is properly prepared.

Response
This recommendation will be implemented.

Section III — Findings — Major Federal Award Program Audit

There were no federal findings.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Exit Conference
June 30, 2006

EXIT CONFERENCE

As exit conference was held on November 12, 2006, with Jack Fairall, CPA, of Marcus, Fairall, Bristol & Co., LLP
with the following County officials:

Scott Vinson — County Manager

Gloria Rodriguez — County Treasurer
Gary Ciccotelli — Sheriff

Martha Long — Financial Services Director

COMPILATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented in this report were compiled by the auditors, Marcus, Fairall, Bristol, and Co.,
LLP.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF LUNA
Passed Journal Entries

June 30,2006

There are no passed journal entries.



